
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
March 1, 2018 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     (None) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Acting President Pip Marquez de la Plata 
at 6:28 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:28 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:29 p.m.) 
 
Director Marquez de la Plata reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski moved 
to approve the items on the consent calendar.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  
The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 1, 2018 Board Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 


 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.)  
 


 1







 D. Approve Resolution 18-01, Declaring that Governing Body Members and 
Volunteers Shall be Deemed to be Employees of the District for the Purpose of 
Providing Workers' Compensation Coverage for Said Certain Individuals While 
Providing Their Services 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:29 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:29 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:29 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2018-19 Operating and Capital Budget.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  
 
V-B. (6:51 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-02, regarding the addition of a Debt 


Policy to the District Policies and Procedures.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Brief discussion ensued.  Director Lipinski moved the approve Resolution 18-02, 
Approving a Debt Policy.  Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  


 
V-C. (6:53 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Surplus Land Strategy.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.    
 
V-D. (7:10 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Project.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:15 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project 
6. CIP 2018 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(7:25 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:25 p.m.) 
 
(None.)  
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (7:25 p.m.) 
 


 2







 3


1. Surplus lands strategy 
2. USDA Bond documents 
3. Draft FY 2018-19 Budget Report 
4. River Lane property 
5. Guernewood Park project 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:28 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:29 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:29 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:29 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:15 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(7:25 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:25 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


April 5, 2018, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 1, 2018 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
  (1) Letter dated March 7, 2018 from California Department of Water Resources 


re Urban Water Management Plan 
 
D. Approval of Resolution 18-03, Destruction of Certain District Records 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2018-19 Operating and Capital Budget Report  


(Est. time 15 min.) 
 


 B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-04, Awarding the Contract for the FY 2018 
Capital Improvement Project to Piazza Construction in the Sum of $1,039,962.70 
and Authorizing the General Manager Total Change Order Approval of $104,000. 
(Est. time 15 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-05, Authorizing the Execution of an 


Installment Purchase Agreement to Finance Improvements to the Municipal 
Water System. (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-07, Authorizing the District to Borrow Interim 


Financing Funding for the CIP 2018 from CoBank (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re District Surplus Land Strategy (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Project (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN















SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: April 5, 2018 Subject: Destruction of Records 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 18-03, Providing for Destruction of Certain District Records. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


Approximately $275.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


Resolution 18-03 provides a one-time authorization to destroy the records identified.  The time periods 
reflected in the Resolution are similar to those approved in previous years.  
 







Resolution No. 18-03 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN 


DISTRICT RECORDS 
 


 WHEREAS, the District is desirous of destroying those records not required to be 
maintained by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Policies and Procedures do not provide complete 
guidelines for the destruction of records. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Manager be 
authorized to destroy the following records: 


 


Record 
Retained 


Period 
Destroy Records 
Older Than . . .  


Bank Deposit Reports (daily) 2 years July 1, 2016 


Bank Statements 5 years July 1, 2013 


Budget Working Papers 3 years July 1, 2015 


Tax/Unemployment Records 4 years July 1, 2014 


Payroll expanded detail 5 years July 1, 2013 


Timesheets 2 years July 1, 2016 


Customer Paper Files 3 years July 1, 2015 


Customer Receipts/ Payment 
Stubs 


2 years July 1, 2016 


Claims against the District 5 years July 1, 2013 


Insurance claims 10 years July 1, 2008 


Attendance records 2 years December 31, 2016 


Field Production Reports 5 years July 1, 2013 


Meter reading books 7 years July 1, 2007 


Leak Tags 2 years July 1, 2016 


Vendor files 5 years July 1, 2013 


Assessment files 7 years July 1, 2011 


Workers Compensation 
claims 


6 years from 
the date claim 


is closed 


July 1, 2012 


Form 700, Conflict of Interest 7 years July 1, 2011 


Audit Workpapers 5 years July 1, 2011 


 
 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any records within the time periods identified 
above which are necessary to resolve an outstanding claim or litigation shall be retained. 







Resolution 18-03  2  
April 5, 2018 


***************************** 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on April 5, 2018, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Richard Holmer       
Tim Lipinski        
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Pip Marquez de la Plata 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 





		Item III-D - Destruction of Records

		Approximately $275. 



		Item III-D.1 RES 18-03 -- Destruction of Records






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 5, 2018  
 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT FY 2018-2019 BUDGET REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive the draft Budget Report and discuss any 
outstanding issues regarding the Draft District FY 2018-2019 Budget, including the 
District’s proposed water rates based on a 3% increase, and provide direction to 
staff and the ad hoc Budget subcommittee.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Provides financial direction for FY 2018-2019. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The draft FY 2018-2019 (FY19) Budget was presented at the March meeting.  At the 
meeting we discussed budget issues, the proposed water rate increases, and the line 
item details of the proposed FY19 Budget.  During the discussion several items were 
highlighted, among them was the projection of water sales revenues.  Highlights of 
the FY19 Budget include: 
 


 A 3% increase in the Water Usage, Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charges.    This is the eighth year of the nine year plan to increase capital 
funding to a sustainable level.  
 


 Water sales are projected to be flat.   
 


 The capital project to be funded and constructed in FY19 is replacement of the 
green sand filter at the Monte Rio Treatment Plant.       


 
 Net Capital Funding will be approximately $430,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 


used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects  We believe that Net Capital Funding 
should be near $500,000 for a sustainable capital improvement program for the 
District.. 


 
The Proposition 218 notices were mailed by March 19.  3,688 notices were mailed.   
As of March 29, 48 protests have been received.   
 
Exhibit A is the draft FY19 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget 
detail, the revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items.    
This document plus information on the proposed 3% water rates increase will be on 
the District website.  Please review the report and provide comments to staff either 
at the meeting or via email. 







DRAFT FY 2018-2019 BUDGET REPORT  2 
April 5, 2018 
 


 


 
 


  
Table 1.  FY 2018-2019 Budget Preparation  
Reviewed/Approved Capital Improvement 
Program 


December 7, 2017 


Introduce Budget Process January 4, 2018 


Budget Committee meetings January - March 
2018 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 1, 2018 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 19, 2018 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 5, 2018 


Approve Budget 
 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates


May 3, 2018 


 
 







Exhibit A 


 


 
 


DRAFT 
Sweetwater Springs 


Water District 
 


Annual Operating & Capital 
Improvement Budget 


 
2018-19 Fiscal Year 


(For the period July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Pip Marquez de la Plata, President 


Tim Lipinski, Vice President 
Richard Holmer, Financial Coordinator 


Sukey Robb-Wilder 
Gaylord Schaap  


 


General Manager 
Steve Mack 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2018-19 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2018-2019 (FY19) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $1.9 million, debt repayment of $1.0 million, and capital 
improvement expenses of $250,000. Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution 
of these expenses and sources of funds to pay for these expenses.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Figure 1. FY 2019 Expenses
Total = $3.2 Million


Capital Improvements
9%


Salary and Benefits
42%


Debt Repayment
32%


Services and Supplies
17%


Figure 2.  FY19 Sources of Funds to Pay for Expenses
Total = $3.4 Million


Base Rate Charge
46%


Water Usage Charge
19%


CDRC
8%


Assessments
23%


Interest
1%


Rent, Other
3%







FY 2018-19 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


3 


DRAFT FY 2018-19 OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY
 


FY 16-17
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY17-18 
BUDGET


FY 17-18
Projected  


 FY 18-19
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY19-FY18 
Budgets 


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


4031 · Water Bill Revenue


1 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Ch


Table 1 is a summary of the FY19 Budget which is described in detail in the 
following pages.  The FY19 Budget is similar in form and content to prior 
years’ budgets.  The FY19 Budget includes the eighth year of 3% increases 
for the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges and the sixth year of a 3% 
increase to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge which are designed to develop 
sustainable capital project funding.    
 


a 270,660 278,615            279,779            288,172 9,557             


2 4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,487,836 1,528,520        1,511,808         1,557,162 28,642           


3 547,418 575,358           619,588            638,176 62,818           


4 4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,035,254            2,103,878        2,131,396         2,195,338       91,460           


5 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,305,913 2,382,493 2,411,175 2,483,510 101,017         


6 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 138,454 119,600 118,990 121,600 2,000             


7 Total Income 2,444,367 2,502,093 2,530,165 2,605,110 103,017         


8 EXPENSES
9 OPERATING EXPENSES


10 SALARY & BENEFITS


11 881,298 905,120 900,600 914,370 9,250             


12 381,545 395,180 426,832 419,212 24,032           


13 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,262,843 1,300,300 1,327,432 1,333,582 33,282           


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES


15 21,132 24,020 24,020 25,080 1,060             


16 30,745 33,000 33,000 33,000 -                     


17 17,395 18,900 22,100 21,300 2,400             


18 125,262 112,000 102,800 100,445 (11,555)          


19 44,074 31,300 22,800 35,000 3,700             


20 31,864 32,200 30,900 32,600            400                


21 21,799 24,700 25,700 26,200 1,500             


22 77,235 90,500 85,300 89,500 (1,000)            


23 29,937 33,090 33,090 33,090 -                     


24 25,012 32,050 27,050 29,050 (3,000)            


25 3,029 3,240 3,440 3,540 300                


26 103,123 98,000 98,000 103,000 5,000             


27 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 530,607 533,000 508,200 531,805 (1,195)            


28 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,793,450 1,833,300 1,835,632 1,865,387 32,087           


29 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $650,918 $668,793 $694,533 $739,723 70,930$         


30 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 40,652 22,000 54,000 50,000 28,000           


31 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 690,767 638,615 639,779 688,172 49,557           


32 SURPLUS/DEFICIT -80,501 8,178 754 1,551 (6,627)            


33


34 CAPITAL BUDGET
35 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
36 TOTAL REVENUE 2,221,982 2,871,615 2,995,779 1,465,172 (1,406,443)     


37 EXPENSES
38 TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,136,580 1,011,244 1,009,260 999,142 (12,102)          


39 Total Capital Expenses 116,486               1,488,000        1,976,087         275,000          (1,213,000)     


40 TOTAL EXPENSES 1,253,066 2,499,244 2,985,347 1,274,142 (1,225,102)     


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 968,916 372,371 10,432 191,030 (181,341)        


41 Net Capital Funding 171,516 380,549 382,273 442,581


42 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
43 DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


44 Operating Budget Cash Reserve 255,161               274,995           274,995            279,808          4,813             


45 86,956                458,325           458,325            466,347          
8,022             


46 258,777               252,811           252,811            249,786          
(3,026)            


47 Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000           250,000            250,000          -                     


48    Total District Policy 850,894               1,236,130        1,236,131         1,245,940       9,810             


49 TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,259,513            2,232,430        2,031,131         2,410,774       178,344         


50    Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,408,619            996,300           795,000            1,164,834       168,534         


Total Communications


Total Benefits


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Salary


Total Insurances


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage 
Charges + Other


Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% 
of Operating Exp)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt 
pmt)


Total Uniforms


Total Utilities


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Operating Supplies


Total Office Expense


Total Miscellaneous Expenses







FY 2018-19 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


4 


2018-19 Fiscal Year (FY19) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site for Monte Rio and 
environs, and distributed through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 
service laterals of varying lengths, and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is 
managed and its operation administered by the District staff of 10 full time employees.  
The District has an aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and 
improving the capital infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high quality water, 
reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fireflow.  The 
annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY19 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
eighth consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage 
Charges, and the sixth consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   A principal source of revenues for the FY19 Budget is water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 2).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases over nine years will build into 
$500,000 available annually for capital projects.   This is the eighth year of planned 
annual 3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement 
program.  More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can 
be found on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
Net Capital Funding will be approximately $430,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 
used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects (line 41 in Table 1).  It is the sum of the 
operating budget surplus, annual assessments, CDRC, and capital interest minus total 
debt payments.  Net Capital Funding is budgeted to increase because of decreased debt 
payments and reduced operations expenses, plus the effect of the 3% water rate 
increase.  We believe that Net Capital Funding should be near $500,000 for a 
sustainable capital improvement program for the District.  
 
The recent drought has had a big impact on the budget planning in this and future years.  
Water sales will continue to be depressed as water use habits recover from the drought 
restrictions required by the State.   Water use in FY 2017 was lower than State direction 
even though that the required restrictions have been lifted - approximately 86% of 2013 
which is the State Board standard.  We expect that water use in the coming fiscal year 
will be at a similar level, and that a 3% rate increase will result in a 3% revenue increase 
in water sales.  We expect that once customer use rebounds from the drought 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2018-19 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


5 


restrictions, water sales revenue will increase and the District will move more quickly 
toward reaching the $500,000 net capital funding goal.   
 
FY 2019 CIP (Table 2):  The FY19 Capital Budget has replacement of the green sand 
filter at the Monte Rio Treatment Plant.   The FY18 Budget included the 2018 CIP, 
funded by a USDA bond.  This project is the completion of the River Road/Old River 
Project and construction of this project will carryover into FY19.   
 
Addressing CalPERS retirement program Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL):  The 
FY19 Budget continues the line item to identify and make accelerated payments for the 
CalPERS UAL.  The Board has determined that this item needs special attention as it 
will continue to impact District finances for many years.  The FY19 payment is $105,000. 
 
District Reserve Policy:   The District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future, and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
 Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget 


expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses 
for economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with emergencies 
and disaster-related expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  For FY19, District Policy Reserves are 
at $1,245,940 and Reserves Above District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are 
$1,164,834, with total reserves at $2,410,774.     
 
 Other assumptions used to develop the Operating section of the Budget include: 


 
 Water Usage and Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges will be raised 


3%.    
 Water Usage revenues are based on flat water sales and on mid-year water 


sales projections, thus the FY19 water usage revenues are estimated to 
increase by 3% over the amount projected at the end of FY18.  The drought is 
over but it will likely take a while for sales to start increasing,  thus affecting 
Water Usage charge revenue. 


 Salaries and Retirement have been adjusted to reflect year 4 of the 2015 Union 
Memorandum of Understanding.  


 
 







FY 2018-19 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


6 


Line Item Highlights of the FY19 Budget: 
 
The FY19 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and 
Water Usage Charges based on flat water sales revenue also includes a 3% increase.  
The 3% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately $90,000.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to increase approximately 2%.  Benefits are 
budgeted to increase approximately $24,000 over the budgeted FY18 budget largely 
because of increased health insurance premiums.  Salaries and Benefits are a major 
District expense – approximately 70% of the FY19 Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $1,000 lower than the FY18 approved 
budget.   Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services 
and is budgeted to increase by $2,400 for FY19.   Governmental Fees and 
Professional Services are budgeted to decrease by $1,000.  Electricity is a big 
expense item, is budgeted to be $5,000 more than FY18, and is the major expense 
difference in this category.   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures are higher than FY18 because we are purchasing a truck 
this year.  There are also substantial expenses for Tank/Facilities Sites to repair District 
tanks. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $688,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($360,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($288,172).   
 
The FY19 Capital Budget major capital expense is replacement of the green sand 
filter at the Monte Rio Treatment Plant, described in Table 2.   
 
Capital Interest revenue has been reduced to reflect expected continuing low interest 
rates and lower fund amounts in this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.0 million and 32% of total 
District annual expenses in FY19.   The District has worked hard to keep interest rates 
as low as possible with 3 refinancings in the past 5 years during the favorable interest 
rate climate.   District Capital Debt includes: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – Approximately $1.6 million remain in the USDA 
bonds that were approved to purchase the District and make needed capital 
improvements, and refinanced in part in 2014 with an interest rate of 2.375%.  
Annual payment - $64,284, remaining principal is $1,596,984. Paid off in 2054.     







FY 2018-19 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


7 


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013 with an interest rate of 3.6%.  Paid off in 2033, the FY19 
payment is $563,194.    Remaining principal is $6,620,000. 


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  The smaller loan was paid off in September 
2016; the second loan will be completed in 2022.  Annual payment - $146,619.  
Remaining principal is $676,857. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  The interest rate for this loan reset in 2018 and 
will be reduced from 4.75% to 3.10%, reducing the annual payment by 
approximately $18,000. Annual payment in FY19 - $225,045.  Remaining 
principal is $2,055,241.   


 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY19, District Policy Reserves are at $1,245,940 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are $1,164,834 with total reserves at 
$2,410,774.    
 
The detailed FY19 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2018-2019 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2018    


  


Phase 2 and 3, Old River Road/River Road Project (GV) - replace 
approximately 4,600 ft of existing main and 58 services on Old 
River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern section of Foothill 
Drive and include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive. $1,200,000


2019  
 Replace green sand filter at Monte Rio Treatment Plant (MR) $250,000


 





		Item V-A - FY 2018-2019 Draft Budget Discussion

		Meeting Date: April 5, 2018 



		Item V-A.1 - FY 2018-2019 Draft Budget Report

		Board of Directors

		General Manager

		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2018-19 Fiscal Year (FY19) Budget










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 5, 2018  
 
Subject:  AWARD OF CIP 2018 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 18-04 which conditionally awards the 
2018 CIP construction contract to Piazza Construction for a not to exceed amount of 
$1,143,962.70, waives any and all non-conformance in the bid of Piazza Construction, 
and authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders for a total amount not to 
exceed $104,000.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $1,039,962.70 plus up to $104,000 in possible change orders for a 
total amount of $1,142,962.70. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
Replacement of aging water main infrastructure is an important activity of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.  Toward that end the District has developed a 
multiyear capital improvement program that has prioritized the capital infrastructure 
that needs to be replaced or improved.  The District is currently working on the FY 2018 
CIP, which replaces approximately 4,600 ft of existing main and 58 services on Old 
River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive and includes 
Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive. 
 
This construction project was advertised on February 1, 2018, and 3 bids were received 
and opened on February 27, 2018, at 2 pm, in accordance with bid instructions.  The 
project had an Engineer's Estimate of Probable Cost of $1,323,139.  The bidder and bid 
amounts are shown in Table 1 below.  After careful review and analysis of the bid by 
Piazza Construction (Piazza), staff is recommending awarding the bid to Piazza.  Piazza 
has done good work for the District in the past and the bid amount is below the 
Engineer's Estimate of Probably Cost.   
 
Table 1.  2018 Capital Improvement Project Bid Summary 
Bidder Name Bid Amount  
Piazza Construction $1,039,962.70 
W.R. Forde Associates, Inc. $1,234,642.00 
Team Ghilotti $1,277,077.07 
 
 
 


  1899027.1







AWARD OF 2018 CIP CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   2   
April 5, 2018                                                                 


 


The work authorized under this contract is scheduled to start within 10 days of notice to 
proceed and, according to the contract, will be completed within 70 working days of the 
notice to proceed.  The work involves repair, replacement and/or reconstruction of 
existing water main distribution lines, and the installation of water “services” and fire 
hydrants.  The work is in the same general location as existing facilities and will result 
in no expansion of system capacity.  The work is part of the District’s Capital 
Improvement Program and will provide important and necessary improvements to the 
District’s distribution system. 
 
In summary, the total award amount for the construction contract is $1,142,962.70 
which is approximately $180,000 below the Engineer’s Estimate of probable cost of 
$1,323,139.  The staff recommendation includes the bid amount of $1,039,962.70 by 
Piazza Construction, and authorization for the General Manager to approve up to 
$104,000 in total change order authority for work not anticipated by the contract.  
Construction management and inspection costs for the project are estimated at 
$110,000.  This puts the entire project cost at $1,142,962.70 including the total change 
order amount.      
 
This project will be funded by a USDA loan/bond.  As such, the Project Award must be 
approved by USDA staff.  District staff have been in communication with USDA and the 
District has received approval from USDA to award the contract (letter attached).   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 18-04 which conditionally awards the 2018 
CIP construction contract to Piazza Construction for a not to exceed amount of 
$1,142,962.70 and authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders for an 
amount not to exceed $104,000.  The conditions of the bid award include Piazza 
Construction’s timely delivering a duly executed Project contract and submitting all 
required documents, including properly executed bonds, certificates of insurance and 
endorsements, pursuant to the Project bid documents.   
 
 







Resolution No. 18-04 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AWARDING THE  CONTRACT FOR THE FY 2018 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT,  TO  PIAZZA CONSTRUCTION IN THE SUM 


OF $1,039,962.70, AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TOTAL 


CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL OF $104,000 
 


 WHEREAS, District staff, including consulting engineering services employed by 
the District, prepared construction bid documents and advertised for construction of the 
FY 2018 Capital Improvement Project (“Project”); and 
 


WHEREAS, District staff solicited bids for the Project on February 1, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 27, 2018, three bids were received and opened in 


accordance with the bid instructions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bid for the Project from Piazza Construction was in the amount 


of $1,040,462.70, and 
 
WHEREAS, Coastland Engineering, the engineer for this Project, found math 


errors in the bid tabulation sheet that changed the allowable bid amount to 
$1,039,962.70, and 


 
WHEREAS, Piazza Construction has the certifications required for potable water 


line installation and meets the requirements stated in the bidding instructions for 
experience and certification of employees with HDPE pipe and fittings installations, and 


 
WHEREAS, the Project will be funded, in part, by a loan/bond from the USDA,  


the bid process was approved by USDA and USDA has approved the award of bid to 
Piazza Construction, and 


 
WHEREAS, the Project involves the replacement or reconstruction of existing 


facilities and will result in negligible or no expansion of capacity, thus the Project is 
exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) and Title 14, the California Code of Regulations (“CEQA Guidelines”), section 
15301(b) and 15302(c); and  
 
 WHEREAS, notwithstanding the above-referenced bid amount, it is anticipated 
that the Project will have a certain amount of unanticipated construction issues during 
construction necessitating change orders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is of importance to the contractor and District alike that 
construction not be unduly delayed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Manager is familiar with the project and will be 
monitoring construction. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby: 
 







Resolution 18-04.  Construction Contract for FY 2018 CIP  2 
April 5, 2018 
 


1. Finds the bid in the amount of $1,039,962.70 by Piazza Construction to be 
the lowest responsive bid and further finds that Piazza Construction is a responsible 
bidder; and 


 
3. Waives any and all non-conformance in the bid of Piazza Construction for 


the Project; and 
 
4. Approves the Project construction contract in the amount of 


$1,039,962.70; and 
  
5. Awards the contract for the 2018 Capital Improvement Project to Piazza 


Construction in the amount of $1,039,962.70, the amount of the lowest responsive bid, 
conditioned on Piazza Construction timely executing the Project contract and submitting all 
required documents, including, but not limited to, executed bonds, certificates of insurance, 
and endorsements, in accordance with the Project bid documents; and 


 
6. Directs staff to issue a Notice of Award to Piazza Construction; and 
 
7. Authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute the Project contract 


on behalf of the District upon timely submission by Piazza Construction of the signed Project 
contract and all other required contract documents, in accordance with the contract bid 
instructions; and  


 
 8. Authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders on the Project 
without Board approval with total change order approval not to exceed $104,000. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on April 5, 
2018, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 
 


           
      Pip Marquez de la Plata   


President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 













		Item V-B - Award of Contract 2018 CIP

		Meeting Date : April 5, 2018 



		Item V-B.1 - Resolution 18-04 Award of Contract 2018 CIP

		Item V-B.2 - USDA Award Concurrence ltr






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 5, 2018  
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF : RESOLUTION 18-05, Authorizing the 
Execution of an Installment Purchase Agreement to Finance 
Improvements to the District's Water System  
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 18-05 authorizing the District to execute 
an Installment Purchase Agreement which allows the District to borrow up to $1.8 
million to complete the 2018 Capital Improvement Project.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  A total commitment of up to $1.8 million at 2.25% interest rate with 
annual debt payments of approximately $60,000. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
The District has agreed to move forward with a U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural 
Development (USDA) loan obligation to fund completion of the 2018 Capital 
Improvement Project (CIP).  The 2018 CIP is replacement of approximately 4,600 ft of 
existing main and 58 services on Old River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern 
section of Foothill Drive near where Old River Road intersects with River Road, and 
includes Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive.  The USDA loan obligation will have a total value 
of up to $1.8 million (but we expect something closer to $1.5 million) and will have a 40 
year amortization.  The bond will cost the District approximately $60,000 per year.      
 
Resolution 18-05 authorizes execution of the Installment Purchase Agreement with 
Municipal Finance Corporation which is the mechanism for borrowing the funds through 
USDA.  With approval of Resolution 18-05, the District can move forward acquiring the 
funding to construct the 2018 CIP.  Resolution 18-05 included in the packet is still in 
draft form but is substantially completed.  The bond counsel in consultation with USDA 
still needs to include final numbers and appropriate dates, and there may be some 
other small changes to this document.  A final version will be distributed prior to the 
Board meeting and at the Board meeting.   
 
This bond/loan will have the following characteristics: 
 


 2.25% true interest rate; 40 year term. 
 Approximately $50,000 in financing costs. 
 The total amount of the loan/bond will be no more than $1.8 million; we think 


the final amount will be closer to $1.5 million because of the favorable 
construction contract award amount. 







Approval of Resolution 18-05  2  
April 5, 2018 


 Annual debt payment will be approximately $60,000 if the final bond amount is 
$1.8 million. 


 The total costs over the forty period of this bond are estimated to be 
approximately $2.8 million assuming a total bond amount of $1.8 million.   


 
The District will have to acquire interim financing to complete the financing package for 
construction of the 2018 CIP.  The USDA has changed their policy of waiving this 
requirement and will transfer the funds under this bond after construction is 
substantially completed.  That is discussed in Agenda Item V.D. 
 
 







  1636256.3  14929-003  1 


RESOLUTION NO.18-05 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 


DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT TO 


FINANCE IMPROVEMENTS TO THE MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM 


WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”), a county water district 
duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of California, intends to 
finance certain improvements to its municipal water system; 


WHEREAS, the United States of America, acting through the Rural Utilities Service of 
the United States Department of Agriculture (“USDA Rural Utilities Service”), has agreed to 
finance the costs of the acquisition of the improvements through a loan in the amount of 
$1,800,000, to be repaid with interest at a rate determined as specified in the letter of conditions 
dated August 5, 2016, as amended by Amendment No. 1 dated May 11, 2017; 


WHEREAS, the financing will be accomplished by (i) the District and Municipal Asset 
Finance Corp. (the “Corporation”) entering into an Installment Purchase Agreement, whereby 
the Corporation will sell the improvements to the District in exchange for installment payments; 
and (ii) the Corporation’s assignment of its interests in the Installment Purchase Agreement to 
USDA Rural Utilities Service pursuant to an Assignment Agreement, in exchange for payment of 
the amount required to be paid by the Corporation to the District under the Installment Purchase 
Agreement, which will be used to pay the costs of constructing the improvements; 


WHEREAS, the Installment Purchase Agreement, which is incorporated herein by 
reference, has been presented to the Board of Directors for its review and approval; 


WHEREAS, the District has previously executed and delivered (i) that certain Installment 
Purchase Agreement dated as of July 3, 2008, as amended by the First Amendment to 
Installment Sale Agreement dated as November 17, 2016, by and between the District and 
Citizens Business Bank, dated as of (the “Prior Installment Purchase Agreement”), (ii) that 
certain Bond Issuance Agreement dated as of August 1, 2013 whereby the District issued a 
bond which was purchased by Capital One Public Funding LLC (the "Prior Bond Issuance 
Agreement") and (ii) that certain Loan Agreement with the California State Revolving Fund 
dated as of June 24, 1993 (the “State Revolving Loan Agreement”), by and between the District 
and the State of California; 


WHEREAS, the District may enter into contracts under which payments are secured by 
a pledge of Water Net Revenues on a parity with the pledge of Water Net Revenues that 
secures payments under the Prior Installment Purchase Agreement, Prior Bond Issuance 
Agreement, and the State Revolving Loan Agreement; 


WHEREAS, the District has met the conditions set forth in Section 4.7 of the Prior 
Installment Purchase Agreement, Section 5.7 of the Prior Bond Issuance Agreement, and 
Article B-1 of the State Revolving Loan Agreement; 


WHEREAS, it appears to the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) that the 
authorization, approval, execution, and delivery of the Installment Purchase Agreement and any 
documents contemplated thereby or incidental thereto are desirable and in the best interests of 
the District;







Resolution No.18-05   
April 5, 2018 
 


  1636256.3  14929-003  2 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District as follows: 


1. Recitals 


.  All of the above recitals are true and correct and the Board so finds and determines. 


2. Authorization of Officers to Execute and Deliver Documents 


.  The Board hereby approves the Installment Purchase Agreement in substantially the form 
presented to this meeting and authorizes and directs the General Manager and his or her 
designees (the “Designated Officers”), and each of them individually, for and in the name of and 
on behalf of the District, to execute and deliver the Installment Purchase Agreement in such 
form with such changes, insertions, revisions, corrections, or amendments as shall be approved 
by the officer executing it.  The execution of the foregoing by a Designated Officer shall 
constitute conclusive evidence of such officer’s and the Board’s approval of any such changes, 
insertions, revisions, corrections, or amendments to the form of the agreement presented to this 
meeting. 


3. Designation as “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation 


.”  The Board reasonably anticipates that the District and all subordinate entities and all entities 
that issue obligations on its behalf will not issue more than ten million dollars of tax-exempt 
obligations (excluding private activity bonds) during calendar year 2018.  The Board hereby 
designates its obligations under the Installment Purchase Agreement as a qualified tax-exempt 
obligation within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended. 


4. Disclosure of Specified Financing Information.  Pursuant to the requirements 
of Government Code section 5852.1, the Board is required to disclose at a public meeting 
certain information related to the financing. The Board has obtained from USDA Rural Utilities 
Service this information as a good faith estimate and hereby discloses said information as found 
in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 


5. General Authorization 


.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of the District with respect to the 
execution and delivery of the Installment Purchase Agreement are hereby approved, and the 
Designated Officers and any and all other officers of the District are hereby authorized and 
directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to do any and all things and take any 
and all actions related to the execution and delivery of any and all certificates, requisitions, 
agreements and other documents that they, or any of them, may deem necessary or advisable 
in order to consummate the financing implemented by the delivery of the Installment Purchase 
Agreement and to effect the purposes of this resolution. 


6. Effective Date 


.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 


***************************** 


 







Resolution No.18-05   
April 5, 2018 
 


  1636256.3  14929-003  3 


I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on April 5, 2018 by the 
following vote: 


Director Aye  No  
     
Gaylord Schaap     
Tim Lipinski     
Richard Holmer     
Pip Marquez de la Plata     
Sukey Robb-Wilder     
     


 
 
 
   


Pip Marquez de la Plata 
President of the Board of Directors 


  
By:______________________________ 


Attest:  Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 


 
 







Resolution No. _______ 
April 5, 2018 


1636256.3  14929-003  A-1 


Exhibit A 


Specified Financial Information* 


 


(A) The true interest cost of the bonds, which means the rate necessary to discount the 
amounts payable on the respective principal and interest payment dates to the purchase 
price received for the new issue of bonds. 


 2.25% 


(B) The finance charge of the bonds, which means the sum of all fees and charges paid to 
third parties. 


 $50,000 


(C) The amount of proceeds received by the public body for sale of the bonds less the 
finance charge of the bonds described in subparagraph (B) and any reserves or 
capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the bonds. 


 $1,750,000 


(D) The total payment amount, which means the sum total of all payments the borrower will 
make to pay debt service on the bonds plus the finance charge of the bonds described in 
subparagraph (B) not paid with the proceeds of the bonds. The total payment amount 
shall be calculated to the final maturity of the bonds. 


 $2,765,000.00 


(* good faith estimate) 







DRAFT 


1582618.2  14929-003


_____________________________________________________________________________ 


INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 


between the 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


and the 


MUNICIPAL ASSET FINANCE CORP. 


Dated _____________ 1, 2018 


relating to 
Revenue Certificate of Participation 


([2018 CIP]) 


_____________________________________________________________________________  







1582618.2  14929-003 i 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 


ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL 
APPLICABILITY ....................................................................................................2 


Section 1.1  Definitions....................................................................................................2 


Section 1.2  Benefits of Installment Purchase Agreement Limited to Parties .................4 


Section 1.3  Successor Is Deemed Included in all References to Predecessor ................4 


Section 1.4  Waiver of Personal Liability ........................................................................4 


Section 1.5  Article and Section Headings, Gender and References ...............................4 


Section 1.6  Partial Invalidity...........................................................................................5 


Section 1.7  California Law .............................................................................................5 


Section 1.8  Notices .........................................................................................................5 


Section 1.9  Execution in Counterparts ............................................................................5 


ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS BY THE DISTRICT AND THE CORPORATION .............5 


Section 2.1  Representations by the District ....................................................................5 


Section 2.2  Representations by the Corporation .............................................................6 


ARTICLE III INSTALLMENT PURCHASE OF THE PROJECT ................................................6 


Section 3.1  Installment Purchase of the Project by the District; Title ............................6 


Section 3.2  Construction of the Project ..........................................................................6 


Section 3.3  Application of Proceeds ...............................................................................6 


ARTICLE IV INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS ................................................................................7 


Section 4.1  Purchase Price ..............................................................................................7 


Section 4.2  Installment Payments ...................................................................................7 


Section 4.3  Net Contract .................................................................................................8 


ARTICLE V SECURITY ................................................................................................................8 


Section 5.1  Pledge of Water Net Revenues ....................................................................8 


Section 5.2  Establishment and Funding of the Reserve Fund ........................................8 


Section 5.3  Depreciation Reserve ...................................................................................8 


ARTICLE VI COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT ........................................................................9 


Section 6.1  Compliance with Installment Purchase Agreement and Loan 
Resolution ....................................................................................................9 


Section 6.2  Tax Covenant ...............................................................................................9 


Section 6.3  Additional Debt ............................................................................................9 







1582618.2  14929-003 ii 


Section 6.4  Protection of Security and Rights of the Corporation ..................................9 


Section 6.5  Indemnification of Corporation ...................................................................9 


Section 6.6  Further Assurances.......................................................................................9 


ARTICLE VII PREPAYMENT OF INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS ...........................................10 


Section 7.1  Prepayment ................................................................................................10 


ARTICLE VIII EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF THE CORPORATION ..........10 


Section 8.1  Events of Default and Remedies ................................................................10 


Section 8.2  Application of Funds Upon Acceleration ..................................................11 


Section 8.3  Other Remedies of the Corporation ...........................................................11 


Section 8.4  Non-Waiver ................................................................................................11 


Section 8.5  Remedies Not Exclusive ............................................................................12 


ARTICLE IX ASSIGNMENT; AMENDMENTS ........................................................................12 


Section 9.1  Assignment ................................................................................................12 


Section 9.2  Amendments Permitted ..............................................................................12 


EXHIBIT A  Purchase Price  ...................................................................................................... A-1 







1582618.2  14929-003 1 Installment Purchase Agreement 


INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 


This INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of 
___________ 1, 2018 (this “Installment Purchase Agreement”), between the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  (the “District”), a county water district duly organized and existing 
under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the State of California, and MUNICIPAL 
ASSET FINANCE CORP., a California corporation (the “Corporation”), 


W I T N E S S E T H: 


WHEREAS, the District proposes to purchase certain improvements to the Water System 
from the Corporation upon the terms and conditions set forth herein; 


WHEREAS, the United States of America, acting through the Rural Utilities Service of the 
United States Department of Agriculture (“USDA Rural Utilities Service”), has agreed to finance the 
costs of the acquisition of the improvements; 


WHEREAS, the District has previously executed and delivered (i) that certain Installment 
Purchase Agreement dated as of July 3, 2008, as amended by the First Amendment to Installment 
Sale Agreement dated as November 17, 2016, by and between the District and Citizens Business 
Bank, dated as of (the “Prior Installment Purchase Agreement”), (ii) that certain Bond Issuance 
Agreement dated as of August 1, 2013 whereby the District issued a bond which was purchased by  
Capital One Public Funding LLC (the "Prior Bond Issuance Agreement") and (ii) that certain Loan 
Agreement with the California State Revolving Fund dated as of June 24, 1993(the “State Revolving 
Loan Agreement”), by and between the District and the State of California; 


WHEREAS, the District may enter into contracts under which payments are secured by a 
pledge of Water Net Revenues on a parity with the pledge of Water Net Revenues that secures 
payments under the Prior Installment Purchase Agreement, Prior Bond Issuance Agreement,  and the 
State Revolving Loan Agreement; 


WHEREAS, the District has met the conditions set forth in Section 4.7 of the  Prior 
Installment Purchase Agreement, Section 5.7 of the Prior Bond Issuance Agreement,  and Article B-
1 of the State Revolving Loan Agreement; 


WHEREAS, the District and the Corporation have duly authorized the execution of this 
Installment Purchase Agreement; 


WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to have happened and to 
have been performed precedent to and in connection with the execution and delivery of this 
Installment Purchase Agreement do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and 
due time, form and manner as required by law, and the parties hereto are now duly authorized to 
execute and enter into this Installment Purchase Agreement; 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and of the mutual agreements and 
covenants contained herein and for other valuable consideration, the parties hereto do hereby agree 
as follows: 







1582618.2  14929-003 2 Installment Purchase Agreement


ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICABILITY 


Section 1.1 Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this 
section shall for all purposes hereof and of any amendment hereof or supplement hereto and of any 
report or other document mentioned herein or therein have the meanings defined herein, the 
following definitions to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of any of the 
terms defined herein. 


Assignee means the United States of America, acting through the Rural Utilities Service of 
the United States Department of Agriculture, as assignee of the Corporation’s interests hereunder, 
and its successors and assigns. 


Certificate means the Revenue Certificate of Participation ([NAME OF PROJECT]) 
evidencing the rights to receive the Installment Payments to be made by the District hereunder, 
which payments are secured by a pledge of Water Net Revenues on a parity with the pledge of 
(i) payments under the State Revolving Loan Agreement, (ii) payments under the Prior Installment 
Sale Agreement, and (iii) the payments under the Prior Bond Issuance Agreement. 


Corporation means Municipal Asset Finance Corp., a nonprofit public benefit corporation 
duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of ________. 


District means the Sweetwater Springs Water District, a county water district duly organized 
and existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the State of California. 


Event of Default means an event described in Section 8.1 (Events of Default and Remedies). 


Fiscal Year means the period beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on the June 30 of 
the next succeeding year, or any other twelve-month period selected and designated as the official 
Fiscal Year of the District. 


Installment Payment Dates mean _________ 1 and __________ 1 of each year, 
commencing _________ 1, 201___. 


Installment Payments means the installment payments of interest and principal scheduled to 
be paid by the District under and pursuant to this Installment Purchase Agreement. 


Installment Purchase Agreement means this Installment Purchase Agreement, by and 
between the District and the Corporation, dated ______ 1, 2018, as originally executed and as it may 
from time to time be amended or supplemented in accordance herewith. 


Letter of Conditions means the letter of conditions dated August 5, 2016, as amended by 
Amendment No. 1 dated May 11, 2017, specifying the terms under which the USDA Rural Utilities 
Service will fund the acquisition of the Assets and the construction and acquisition of the Project. 


Loan Resolution means the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on 
October 5, 2017, in the form of the loan resolution specified by RUS Bulletin 1780-27, as required 
by Paragraph II(2)(a) of the Letter of Conditions. 







1582618.2  14929-003 3 Installment Purchase Agreement


Manager means the General Manager of the District, or any other person designated by the 
General Manager to act on behalf of the General Manager. 


Net Proceeds means, when used with respect to any casualty insurance or condemnation 
award, the proceeds from such insurance or condemnation award remaining after payment of all 
expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in the collection of such proceeds. 


Operation and Maintenance Expenses means, for any period of calculation, all expenses 
and costs of management, operation, maintenance and repair of the Water System, and all incidental 
costs, fees and expenses and capital expenditures properly chargeable to the Water System, but 
excluding debt service or other similar payments and depreciation and obsolescence charges or 
reserves therefore and amortization of intangibles. 


Owner means any person who shall be the registered owner of the Certificate. 


Parity Debt means the payments made pursuant to any other indebtedness or other 
obligations (including leases and installment purchase agreements) hereafter issued or incurred and 
secured by a pledge of and lien on Water Net Revenues equally and ratably with the Installment 
Payments.  Parity Debt includes (i) the payments under the State Revolving Loan Agreement, (ii) the 
installment payments under the Prior Installment Sale Agreement, and (iii) the payments under the 
Prior Bond Issuance Agreement. 


Prior Bond Issuance Agreement means the Bond Issuance Agreement (2013 General 
Obligation Refunding Bond) dated as of August 1, 2013 whereby the District sold a bond purchased 
by Capital One Public Funding, LLC. 


Prior Installment Sale Agreement means the Installment Sale Agreement dated as of July 3, 
2008, as amended by the First Amendment to Installment Sale Agreement dated as of November 17, 
2016,  all by and between the District and Citizens Business Bank. 


Project means the improvements to be acquired from the Corporation. 


Purchase Price means the principal amount plus interest thereon owed by the District to the 
Corporation under the terms hereof as provided in Section 4.1 (Purchase Price). 


Reserve Requirement means an amount equal to the average annual amount payable as 
Installment Payments. 


USDA Rural Utilities Service means the United States of America, acting through the Rural 
Utilities Service of the United States Department of Agriculture. 


State Revolving Loan Agreement means the Loan Agreement dated as of June 24, 1993, by 
and between the District and the State of California 


Water Gross Revenues means all income and revenue received by the District from the 
ownership and operation of the Water System, including, without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, 







1582618.2  14929-003 4 Installment Purchase Agreement


all income, rents, rates, fees, charges or other moneys derived from the services, facilities 
and commodities sold, furnished or supplied through the facilities of the Water System; 


the earnings on and income derived from the investment of such income, rents, rates, fees, 
charges or other moneys to the extent that the use of such earnings and income is limited by 
or pursuant to the law to the Water System; and 


the proceeds derived by the District directly or indirectly from the sale, lease or other 
disposition of a part of the Water System; 


provided, that the term “Water Gross Revenues” shall not include customers' deposits or any 
other deposits subject to refund until such deposits have become the property of the District. 


Water Net Revenues means, for any period of calculation, Water Gross Revenues less 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the Water System. 


Water Service means the water distribution service made available or provided by the Water 
System. 


Water System means the municipal water system of the District serving the District and its 
inhabitants, including all improvements, extensions, and additions thereto, and including all 
property, real, personal and mixed, of every nature now or hereafter owned by the District and used 
in the operations of its municipal water system. 


Section 1.2 Benefits of Installment Purchase Agreement Limited to Parties.  Nothing 
contained herein, expressed or implied, is intended to give to any person other than the District or the 
Corporation any right, remedy or claim under or pursuant hereto, and any agreement or covenant 
required herein to be performed by or on behalf of the District or the Corporation shall be for the 
sole and exclusive benefit of the other parties. 


Section 1.3 Successor Is Deemed Included in all References to Predecessor.  Whenever 
either the District or the Corporation is named or referred to herein, such reference shall be deemed 
to include the successor to the powers, duties and functions that are presently vested in the District or 
the Corporation, and all agreements and covenants required hereby to be performed by or on behalf 
of the District or the Corporation shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors 
thereof whether so expressed or not. 


Section 1.4 Waiver of Personal Liability.  No director, officer or employee of the 
District shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the Installment Payments, but 
nothing contained herein shall relieve any director, officer or employee of the District from the 
performance of any official duty provided by any applicable provisions of law or hereby. 


Section 1.5 Article and Section Headings, Gender and References.  The headings or 
titles of the several articles and sections hereof and the table of contents appended hereto shall be 
solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof, 
and words of any gender shall be deemed and construed to include all genders.  All references herein 
to “Articles,” “Sections” and other subdivisions or clauses are to the corresponding articles, sections, 
subdivisions or clauses hereof; and the words “hereby,” “herein,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “herewith” and 







1582618.2  14929-003 5 Installment Purchase Agreement


other words of similar import refer to this Installment Purchase Agreement as a whole and not to any 
particular article, section, subdivision or clause hereof. 


Section 1.6 Partial Invalidity.  If any one or more of the agreements or covenants or 
portions thereof required hereby to be performed by or on the part of the District or the Corporation 
shall be contrary to law, then such agreement or agreements, such covenant or covenants or such 
portions thereof shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining agreements 
and covenants or portions thereof and shall in no way affect the validity hereof.  The District and the 
Corporation hereby declare that they would have executed this Installment Purchase Agreement, and 
each and every other article, section, paragraph, subdivision, sentence, clause and phrase hereof 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more articles, sections, paragraphs, subdivisions, sentences, 
clauses or phrases hereof or the application thereof to any person or circumstance may be held to be 
unconstitutional, unenforceable or invalid. 


Section 1.7 California Law.  This Installment Purchase Agreement shall be construed 
and governed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 


Section 1.8 Notices.  All written notices to be given hereunder shall be given by mail to 
the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other address as such party may 
provide to the other party in writing from time to time, namely: 


If to the District: Sweetwater Springs Water District 
10781 Highway 116, 
PO Box 48
 Guerneville, CA 95446 
Attention: General Manager 


If to the Corporation: Municipal Asset Finance Corp. 


Attention: 


Section 1.9 Execution in Counterparts.  This Installment Purchase Agreement may be 
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall 
constitute but one and the same instrument. 


ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS BY THE DISTRICT AND THE CORPORATION 


Section 2.1 Representations by the District.  The District makes the following 
representations: 


(a) The District is a county water district duly organized and existing under and by virtue 
of the Constitution and laws of the State of California. 







1582618.2  14929-003 6 Installment Purchase Agreement


(b) The District has full legal right, power and authority to enter into this Installment 
Purchase Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder. 


(c) By proper action, the District has duly authorized the execution, delivery and due 
performance of this Installment Purchase Agreement.  


Section 2.2 Representations by the Corporation.  The Corporation makes the following 
representations and warranties: 


(a) The Corporation is a nonprofit public benefit corporation duly organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of California.  


(b) The Corporation has full legal right, power and authority to enter into this Installment 
Purchase Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder. 


(c) By proper action, the Corporation has duly authorized the execution, delivery and due 
performance of this Installment Purchase Agreement. 


ARTICLE III 
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE OF THE PROJECT 


Section 3.1 Installment Purchase of the Project by the District; Title.  The Corporation 
hereby sells the Project to the District for the Purchase Price, as described in Section 4.1 (Purchase 
Price).  All right, title and interest in each component of the Project shall vest in the District 
immediately upon construction thereof.  Such vesting shall occur without further action by the 
Corporation or the District, and the Corporation shall, if requested by the District or if necessary to 
assure such automatic vesting, deliver any and all documents required to assure such vesting. 


Section 3.2 Construction of the Project.  The Corporation hereby agrees that, following 
the delivery of the Certificate, it shall cause the Project to be constructed by the District as its agent.  
The District shall enter into contracts and provide for, as agent for the Corporation, the complete 
construction of the Project.  The District hereby agrees that it will cause the construction of the 
Project to be diligently performed after the deposit of funds pursuant to Section 3.3 (Application of 
Proceeds). 


It is hereby expressly understood and agreed that the Corporation shall be under no liability 
of any kind or character whatsoever for the payment of any cost of the Project and that all such costs 
and expenses shall be paid by the District, regardless of whether the funds deposited pursuant to 
Section 3.3 (Application of Proceeds) are sufficient to cover all such costs and expenses. 


Section 3.3 Application of Proceeds.  To pay the costs of construction of the Project and 
the costs of issuance of the Certificate, USDA Rural Utilities Service has agreed, in exchange for the 
Corporation’s assignment of its interests hereunder, to advance to the District a total of 
$[PRINCIPAL AMOUNT] in accordance with Section II(5) of the Letter of Conditions.  The 
District agrees that it will apply the funds received for the following purposes: 


(a) Costs of Issuance.  to pay costs of issuance of the Certificate (estimated at 
$__________); and 







1582618.2  14929-003 7 Installment Purchase Agreement


(b) Project Costs:  to deposit the balance of the funds received into the Construction 
Account, which is hereby established for the Project, under the control of the District. 


ARTICLE IV 
INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS 


Section 4.1 Purchase Price. 


(a) The Purchase Price to be paid by the District hereunder to the Corporation is the sum 
of the principal amount of the District’s obligations hereunder plus the interest to accrue on the 
unpaid balance of such principal amount from the effective date hereof over the term hereof, subject 
to prepayment as provided in Article VII. 


(b) The principal amount of the payments to be made by the District hereunder is set 
forth in Exhibit A hereto. 


(c) The interest to accrue on the unpaid balance of such principal amount is as specified 
in Section 4.2 (Installment Payments) and Exhibit A hereto and shall be paid by the District as and 
constitute interest paid on the principal amount of the District’s obligations hereunder. 


Section 4.2 Installment Payments.  The District shall, subject to its rights of prepayment 
provided in Article VII (Prepayment of Installment Payments), pay the Corporation the Purchase 
Price in installment payments of interest and principal in the amounts and on the Installment 
Payment Dates as set forth in Exhibit A hereto. 


Interest shall accrue at the rate of 2.25% per annum on the aggregate unpaid principal 
components of Installment Payments, calculated based on a 365-day year and actual days elapsed. 


Each Installment Payment shall be paid to the Corporation in lawful money of the United 
States of America.  If the District fails to make any of the payments required to be made by it under 
this section, such payment shall continue as an obligation of the District until such amount shall have 
been fully paid and the District agrees to pay the same with interest accruing thereon at the rate or 
rates of interest then applicable to the remaining unpaid principal balance of the Installment 
Payments if paid in accordance with their terms. 


The obligation of the District to make the Installment Payments out of Water Net Revenues is 
absolute and unconditional, and until such time as the Purchase Price shall have been paid in full, the 
District will not discontinue or suspend any Installment Payments required to be made by it under 
this section when due, whether or not the Water System or any part thereof is operating or operable, 
or its use is suspended, interfered with, reduced or curtailed or terminated in whole or in part, and 
whether or not the Project has been completed, and such payments shall not be subject to reduction 
whether by offset or otherwise and shall not be conditional upon the performance or nonperformance 
by any party of any agreement for any cause whatsoever. 


The District's obligations to make the Installment Payments and other obligations of the 
District hereunder are special obligations of the District payable solely from, and secured by a 
pledge of and lien upon the Water Net Revenues.  The Installment Payments do not constitute a debt 
of the District, the Corporation, the State of California or any political subdivision thereof within the 







1582618.2  14929-003 8 Installment Purchase Agreement


meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation.  Neither the full faith and credit 
nor the taxing power of the District, the State of California or any political subdivision thereof is 
pledged to the payment thereof. 


Section 4.3 Net Contract.  This Installment Purchase Agreement shall be deemed and 
construed to be a net contract, and the District shall pay absolutely net during the term hereof the 
Installment Payments and all other payments required hereunder, free of any deductions and without 
abatement, diminution or set-off whatsoever. 


ARTICLE V 
SECURITY 


Section 5.1 Pledge of Water Net Revenues.  The District hereby irrevocably pledges all 
of the Water Net Revenues to the payment of the Installment Payments.  This pledge shall constitute 
a first lien on the Water Net Revenues for the payment of the Installment Payments on parity with 
the pledge of Water Net Revenues that secures the Parity Debt. 


Section 5.2 Establishment and Funding of the Reserve Fund.   


(a) Establishment of the Reserve Fund.  In accordance with Paragraph II(6)(a) of the 
Letter of Conditions, the District has established and promises to maintain a fund designated as 
“Reserve Fund _________” (the “Reserve Fund”).  On each anniversary of the delivery of the 
Certificate, commencing in 201___, the District shall from Water Net Revenues deposit into the 
Reserve Fund an amount equal to one-tenth (1/10) of the average annual amount payable as 
Installment Payments until the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund is equal to the Reserve 
Requirement. 


(b) Application of the Reserve Fund.  In accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Loan 
Resolution, the District may withdraw and apply funds from the Reserve Fund only with the prior 
approval of USDA Rural Utilities Service and only (i) to make Installment Payments when no other 
funds of the District are available therefor, (ii) to pay the final Installment Payment, or (iii) to fund 
emergency maintenance to the Water System, extensions to the Water System, and replacement of 
short-lived assets used in connection with the Water System.  The District shall deposit any earnings 
received from the investment of funds in the Reserve Fund therein until the balance of the Reserve 
Fund is equal to the Reserve Requirement; thereafter, the District shall deposit any such earnings 
into its water enterprise fund. 


(c) Replenishment of the Reserve Fund.  On or before the last day of each month, the 
District shall deposit in the Reserve Fund one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount of any prior withdrawal 
from the Reserve Fund until the amount withdrawn is fully restored to the Reserve Account. 


Section 5.3 Depreciation Reserve.   


(a) Establishment and Funding of a Depreciation Reserve.  In accordance with 
Paragraph II(6)(b) of the Letter of Conditions, the District has established and promises to maintain a 
fund designated as “Water Short-Lived Asset Replacement Reserve Fund 2018” (the “Replacement 
Reserve Fund”).  On each anniversary of the delivery of the Certificate, for as long as the Installment 
Payments are unpaid, the District shall from Water Net Revenues deposit into the Replacement 







1582618.2  14929-003 9 Installment Purchase Agreement


Reserve Fund not less than $45,100 to provide for the timely replacement of short-lived assets; 
provided that, before each anniversary date, the District shall evaluate the condition of the short-
lived assets of the Water System, estimate the amount required for timely replacement of short-lived 
assets, and shall increase or may decrease the amount to be deposited as appropriate, based on such 
evaluation.  For purposes of this section, “short-lived assets” means equipment and other 
components of the Water System that have a useful life of not more than fifteen (15) years, which is 
significantly less that the repayment period of the Certificate. 


(b) Application of the Depreciation Reserve.  In accordance with Paragraph II(6)(b) of 
the Letter of Conditions, the District may withdraw and apply funds from the Replacement Reserve 
Fund only for replacement of short-lived assets used in connection with the District’s Water System. 


ARTICLE VI 
COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT 


Section 6.1 Compliance with Installment Purchase Agreement and Loan Resolution. 
The District will punctually pay the Installment Payments in strict conformity with the terms hereof, 
and will faithfully observe and perform all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms 
contained herein required to be observed and performed by it, and will not terminate this Installment 
Purchase Agreement for any cause.  The District will faithfully observe and perform all the 
agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained in the Loan Resolution resolved therein to be 
observed and performed by it. 


Section 6.2 Tax Covenant.  The District shall at all times do and perform all acts and 
things permitted by law that are necessary and desirable in order to assure that interest paid with 
respect to the Certificate will be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and 
shall take no action that would result in such interest not being so excluded.  This covenant shall 
survive the payment in full of the Installment Payments. 


Section 6.3 Additional Debt.   


The District may incur obligations secured by the Water Net Revenues with the prior written 
consent of USDA Rural Utilities Service in accordance with Section 7 of the Loan Resolution. 


Section 6.4 Protection of Security and Rights of the Corporation.  The District will 
preserve and protect the security hereof and the rights of the Corporation to the Installment Payments 
hereunder and will warrant and defend such rights against all claims and demands of all persons. 


Section 6.5 Indemnification of Corporation.  The District hereby agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless the Corporation and its directors, officers and employees if and to the extent 
permitted by law, from and against all claims, advances, damages and losses, including legal fees 
and expenses, arising out of or in connection with the acceptance or the performance of its duties 
hereunder and the Assignment Agreement; provided that no indemnification will be made for willful 
misconduct, negligence or breach of an obligation hereunder or the Assignment Agreement by the 
Corporation. 


Section 6.6 Further Assurances.  The District will adopt, deliver, execute and make any 
and all further assurances, instruments and resolutions as may be reasonably necessary or proper to 







1582618.2  14929-003 10 Installment Purchase Agreement


carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance hereof and for the better assuring and 
confirming unto the Corporation of the rights and benefits provided to it herein. 


ARTICLE VII 
PREPAYMENT OF INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS 


Section 7.1 Prepayment.  Prepayments of scheduled installments, or any portion thereof, 
may be made at any time at the option of the District with the prior written consent of the USDA 
Rural Utilities Service.  Refunds and extra payments, as defined in the regulations of USDA Rural 
Utilities Service according to the source of funds involved, shall, after payment of interest, be 
applied to the Installment Payments last to become due hereunder and shall not affect the obligation 
of the District to pay the remaining Installment Payments as scheduled herein. Any such prepayment 
shall be applied to redeem all or a portion of the Certificate. 


ARTICLE VIII 
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF THE CORPORATION 


Section 8.1 Events of Default and Remedies.   


(a) Events of Default.  The following shall be Events of Default hereunder: 


Failure by the District to pay any Installment Payment at the time specified herein. 


Failure by the District to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its 
part contained herein or in the Loan Resolution, other than in clause (1) of this subsection, 
for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that 
it be remedied has been given to the District by the Corporation; provided, however, that the 
Corporation and the District may agree that action by the District to cure such failure may be 
extended beyond such thirty-day period. 


(b) Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default shall have happened and be 
continuing, the Corporation shall have the right, at its option upon notice to the District, to: 


declare the entire principal amount of the unpaid Installment Payments and the accrued 
interest thereon to be immediately due and payable, whereupon the same shall immediately 
become due and payable; 


for the account of the District, incur and pay reasonable expenses for repair, maintenance, 
and operation of the Water System and such other reasonable expenses as may be necessary 
to cure the cause of default, and/or 


take possession of the Water System, repair, maintain, and operate or rent it. 


The provisions of the preceding clause (1) are subject to the condition that if, at any time 
after the principal amount of the unpaid Installment Payments shall have been so declared 
due and payable pursuant to the preceding clause (1), and before any judgment or decree for 
the payment of the moneys due shall have been obtained or entered, the District shall deposit 
with the Corporation a sum sufficient to pay the unpaid principal amount of the Installment 







1582618.2  14929-003 11 Installment Purchase Agreement


Payments coming due prior to such declaration, and the reasonable expenses of the 
Corporation, and any and all other defaults known to the Corporation (other than in the 
payment of the entire principal amount of the unpaid Installment Payments and the accrued 
interest thereon due and payable solely by reason of such declaration) shall have been made 
good or cured to the satisfaction of the Corporation or provision deemed by the Corporation 
to be adequate shall have been made therefor, then and in every such case the Corporation, 
by written notice to the District, may rescind and annul such declaration and its 
consequences; but no such rescission and annulment shall extend to or shall affect any 
subsequent default or shall impair or exhaust any right or power consequent thereon. 


Section 8.2 Application of Funds Upon Acceleration.  Upon the date of the declaration 
of acceleration as provided in Section 8.1 (Events of Default and Remedies), all Water Net Revenues 
thereafter received by the District shall be applied in the following order -- 


First, to the payment, without preference or priority, and in the event of any insufficiency of 
such Water Net Revenues ratably without any discrimination or preference, of the fees, costs and 
expenses of the Corporation if any, in carrying out the provisions of this article, including reasonable 
compensation to their respective accountants and counsel; 


Second, to the payment of the Operation and Maintenance Expenses; and 


Third, to the payment of the entire principal amount of the unpaid Installment Payments and 
the unpaid principal amount of any Parity Debt and the accrued interest thereon on a proportionate 
basis, with interest on the overdue installments at the rate or rates of interest applicable to the 
Installment Payments and such Parity Debt if paid in accordance with their respective terms. 


Section 8.3 Other Remedies of the Corporation.  The Corporation shall have the right: 


(a) by mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to enforce its 
rights against the District or any director, officer or employee thereof, and to compel the District or 
any such director, officer or employee to perform and carry out its or his duties under law and the 
agreements and covenants required to be performed by it or him contained herein; 


(b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things that are unlawful or violate the rights of 
the Corporation; or 


(c) by suit in equity upon the happening of an Event of Default to require the District and 
its directors, officers and employees to account as the trustee of an express trust. 


Section 8.4 Non-Waiver.  Nothing in this article or in any other provision hereof shall 
affect or impair the obligation of the District, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the 
Installment Payments to the Corporation at the respective due dates or upon prepayment, or shall 
affect or impair the right of the Corporation, which is also absolute and unconditional, to institute 
suit to enforce such payment by virtue of the contract embodied herein. 


A waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Corporation shall not affect any 
subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or impair any rights or remedies on any such 
subsequent default or breach of duty or contract.  No delay or omission by the Corporation to 







1582618.2  14929-003 12 Installment Purchase Agreement


exercise any right or remedy accruing upon any default or breach of duty or contract shall impair any 
such right or remedy or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or breach of duty or 
contract or an acquiescence therein, and every right or remedy conferred upon the Corporation by 
law or by this article may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as shall be 
deemed expedient by the Corporation. 


If any action, proceeding or suit to enforce any right or exercise any remedy is abandoned or 
determined adversely to the Corporation, the District and the Corporation shall be restored to their 
former positions, rights and remedies as if such action, proceeding or suit had not been brought or 
taken. 


Section 8.5 Remedies Not Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
the Corporation is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each such remedy shall be 
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter 
existing in law or in equity or by statute or otherwise and may be exercised without exhausting and 
without regard to any other remedy conferred by law. 


ARTICLE IX 
ASSIGNMENT; AMENDMENTS 


Section 9.1 Assignment.  The District hereby consents to the assignment by the 
Corporation of its rights under this Installment Purchase Agreement to USDA Rural Utilities 
Service, which rights are evidenced by the Certificate.  The District shall maintain a register 
containing the name and address of the Owner. 


The Owner may transfer ownership of the Certificate by surrender thereof to the District 
accompanied by a duly executed instrument of transfer in a form approved by the District.  The 
District shall deliver to the transferee a new Certificate in the aggregate amount of the unpaid 
principal installments and shall record the transfer in the Certificate register. 


Section 9.2 Amendments Permitted.   


(a) This Installment Purchase Agreement and the rights and obligations of the 
Corporation and the District and of the Owner may be modified or amended at any time but only 
with the written consent of the Owner.  No such modification or amendment shall (1) reduce the rate 
of interest or amount of principal represented by the Certificate or extend the time of payment of 
principal or interest represented thereby, without the consent of the Owner, or (2) modify the 
requirement for the consent of the Owner for the execution of any amendment or modification of this 
Installment Purchase Agreement, or (3) modify any of the rights or obligations of the Corporation 
without its written consent thereto. 


(b) This Installment Purchase Agreement and the rights and obligations of the 
Corporation and the District and of the Owner may also be modified or amended at any time, 
without the consent of the Owner, but only to the extent permitted by law and only for any one or 
more of the following purposes-- 


to add to the covenants and agreements of the Corporation or the District contained in this 
Installment Purchase Agreement other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed or 







1582618.2  14929-003 13 Installment Purchase Agreement


to surrender any right or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the Corporation or the 
District, and that shall not adversely affect the interests of the Owner; 


to cure, correct or supplement any ambiguous or defective provision contained in this 
Installment Purchase Agreement or in regard to questions arising under this Installment 
Purchase Agreement, as the Corporation or the District may deem necessary or desirable and 
that shall not adversely affect the interests of the Owner; and 


to make such other amendments or modifications as may be in the best interests of the 
Owner. 


[Signature page follows] 







1582618.2  14929-003 Signature page to Installment Purchase Agreement 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Installment Purchase 
Agreement by their officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year first written above. 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


By: 
General Manager 


MUNICIPAL ASSET FINANCE CORP. 


By: 
Secretary/Treasurer 







1582618.2  14929-003 A-1 Installment Purchase Agreement 


EXHIBIT A 


PURCHASE PRICE 


1. The aggregate principal amount of payments to be made by the District hereunder
with respect to the Certificate is $__________. 


2. The principal components of the Installment Payments with respect to the Certificate
are payable in the following amounts on ________ 1 in the following years: 


Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount 


On ______ 1, ____the District shall pay as the interest component of its Installment Payment 
an amount equal to ______% per annum of the amount of each advance from its actual date as 
shown on the Certificate calculated based on a 365-day year and actual days elapsed.  On each 
_______ 1 and __________ 1 thereafter, to and including _______ 1, 20___, the District shall pay as 
the interest component of its Installment Payments an amount equal to one-half of _____% of the 
aggregate amount of advances made that have not been repaid as principal components of 
Installment Payments. 





		Item V-C - Approval of Resos 18-05 USDA Financing

		Meeting Date : April 5, 2018 



		Item V-C.1 - Resolution 18-05 Approving USDA Loan Docs

		Item V-C.2 - USDA Installment Purchase Agreement










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 5, 2018  
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 18-07, Authorizing the Execution 
of a Credit Agreement with Cobank for Interim Financing for 
Construction of the 2018 CIP 
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 18-07 authorizing the District to execute a 
Credit Agreement with CoBank which allows the District to borrow up to approximately 
$1.5 million for interim financing to complete the 2018 Capital Improvement Project.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  We estimate that the cost of the interim financing will be 
approximately $7,000. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
The District has agreed to move forward with a U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural 
Development (USDA) loan obligation to fund completion of the 2018 Capital 
Improvement Project (CIP).  The 2018 CIP is replacement of approximately 4,600 ft of 
existing main and 58 services on Old River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern 
section of Foothill Drive near where Old River Road intersects with River Road, and 
includes Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive.  The USDA loan obligation will have a total value 
of approximately $1.5 million and will have a 40 year amortization.        
 
USDA will forward the loan funds only upon substantial completion of the construction 
project.  Because the contractor, Piazza Construction, will require monthly 
reimbursement for its approved costs, the District needs funding for these monthly 
construction contract reimbursements for the duration of the construction period - this 
is called interim financing.  USDA recommended two entities with which they have 
considerable experience.  CoBank had the best terms - no application fee because the 
District is a member of Cal Rural Water Association, and an annual interest rate of 2% 
above the monthly LIBOR index (currently at 1.6% for a total interest of 3.6%).  The 
LIBOR Index changes; we expect the Index and thus interest rate to be higher this 
summer. 
 
The interim financing will have the following characteristics: 
 


 Interest rate of LIBOR Index plus 2%; no application fee. 
 Interest is calculated on total borrowed to date and paid monthly. 
 The total amount borrowed will be paid back when USDA funds are transferred to 


the District upon substantial completion of the project which we expect to be in 
October 2018. 







Approval of Resolution 18-07  2  
April 5, 2018 


 
Staff intends to use District Reserve funds to the extent possible. With this approach 
this interim financing can be viewed as a reserve for District Reserves - we will only 
borrow money from the interim financing when we need it during the construction of 
the 2018 CIP.  That approach will minimize the interest paid for the interim financing.  
But it will be available for the entire amount of the construction contract and inspection 
fees, to the extent needed, and if other unanticipated expenses arise.   
 
Resolution 18-07 authorizes the execution of a Credit Agreement with Cobank (included 
in the electronic package).  CoBank will work with USDA to coordinate funding requests 
(USDA has to approve draws from the CoBank account) and the final repayment of the 
interim financing.  There are other documents related to this action which will need 
signatures at the Board meeting.   
 







RESOLUTION 18-07 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT (00113226) 
Guerneville, California 


 


00113226 
P a g e  | 1 


 
 


Resolution No. 18-07 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 


WATER DISTRICT, GUERNEVILLE CA, AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT TO BORROW 


INTERIM FINANCING FUNDING FOR THE 2018 CIP FROM COBANK 


 
 
 WHEREAS, the above named entity (the “Borrower”), under its articles of organization, 
operating agreement, or other organizational documents (the “Organizational Documents”), has full 
power and authority to borrow money, to secure the same with its own property and property delivered to 
it for marketing or otherwise and to perform all obligations associated therewith. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Borrower (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the 
best interest of the Borrower to enter into the transactions with CoBank, ACB (“Lender”) described in 
this Resolution. 
 
 WHEREAS, all prerequisite acts and proceedings preliminary to the adoption of this Resolution 
have been taken and done in due and proper form, time and manner, with the Board having full power and 
authority under the Organizational Documents to adopt this Resolution and legally bind the Borrower to 
the terms hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that each of the following persons or positions 
(line out any not to be authorized under this Resolution) President, Vice President, Financial 
Coordinator, General Manager, (the “Authorized Signatories”) of the Borrower are hereby jointly and 
severally authorized and empowered to obtain for and on behalf of the Borrower from time to time, from 
Lender, a loan or loans or other financial accommodations (including, without limitation, interest rate 
swaps, hedges, caps, collars or similar arrangements designed to protect against fluctuations in interest 
rates (the “Hedging Transactions”), letters of credit, note purchase agreements and bankers acceptances) 
(each, a “Loan”) and for such purposes:  (1) to execute and deliver such application or applications 
(including exhibits, amendments or notes thereto) as may be required for such Loan and all borrowings 
thereunder; (2) to obligate the Borrower to repay all amounts borrowed and pay such rate or rates of 
interest as the Authorized Signatories so acting shall deem proper, and in connection therewith to 
purchase such interest rate risk management products as may be offered from time to time by Lender; (3) 
to obligate the Borrower to such other terms and conditions as the Authorized Signatories so acting shall 
deem proper; (4) to execute and deliver to Lender or its nominee all such written loan agreements, interest 
rate swap, hedge, cap, collar or similar agreement, including any master agreement published by the 
International Swap and Derivatives Association, Inc. and such other documents and instruments as may 
be required by Lender in regard to or as evidence of any Loan made or Hedging Transaction entered into 
pursuant to the terms of this Resolution, and such Loan Documents shall include the Borrower’s consent 
to suit for enforcement of the Loan Documents and all appropriate judicial remedies available at law or 
equity, even though sovereign immunity may otherwise bar such suit; (6) to pledge, grant a security 
interest or lien in, or assign property of the Borrower or property of others on which it is entitled to 
borrow, of any kind and in any amount as security for any or all obligations (past, present and/or future) 
of the Borrower to Lender, and to execute and deliver to Lender or its nominee all such security 







RESOLUTION 18-07 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT (00113226) 
Guerneville, California 


 


00113226 
P a g e  | 2 


 
 


agreements, pledges, mortgages, deeds of trust, financing statements and other documents as may be 
required by Lender in connection therewith; (7) from time to time to extend, amend, renew or refinance 
any such Loan and to execute and deliver all agreements, notes, instruments and other documents as may 
be required in connection therewith; (8) to reborrow from time to time all or any part of the amounts 
repaid to Lender on any Loan made pursuant hereto (whether for the same or a different purpose); (9) to 
execute and deliver to Lender such agreements, addenda, documents or instruments as may be required by 
Lender in the event that the Borrower elects to use Lender’s electronic banking system (the “System”); 
(10) to execute and deliver to Lender any agreements, addenda, authorization forms and other documents 
or instruments as may be required by Lender in the event that the Borrower elects to use any services or 
products related to a Loan that are offered by Lender now or in the future, including without limitation an 
automated clearing house (ACH) service; (11) to direct and delegate to designated employees of the 
Borrower the authority to direct, by written or telephonic instructions or electronically, if the Borrower 
has agreed to use the System for such purpose, the disposition of the proceeds of any Loan authorized 
herein, and to direct Lender to deliver any property of the Borrower at any time held by Lender; and (12) 
to delegate to designated employees of the Borrower the authority to request by telephonic or written 
means or electronically, if the Borrower has agreed to use the System for such purpose, loan advances 
and/or other financial accommodations, and in connection therewith, to fix rates and agree to pay fees and 
to direct the proceeds of advances to authorized accounts.  In the absence of any direction or delegation 
authorized in (11) or (12) above, all existing directions and/or delegations shall remain in full force and 
effect and shall be applicable to any Loan authorized herein.   
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that each of the Authorized Signatories is hereby jointly and severally 
authorized to:  (1) establish a Cash Investment Services Account with Lender; (2) make such investments 
therein as any Authorized Signatory shall deem proper; (3) direct by written or telephonic instructions or 
electronically, if the Borrower has agreed to use the System for such purposes, the disposition of the 
proceeds therein; (4) delegate to designated employees of the Borrower the authority set forth in (2) and 
(3) above; and (5) execute and deliver all documents and agreements necessary to carry out this authority. 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that each of the Authorized Signatories is hereby jointly and severally 
authorized and directed to do or cause to be done, from time to time, all things which may be necessary or 
proper to carry out the terms and intent of this Resolution. 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that every act and action of any person heretofore executing any 
document or instrument delivered to Lender or its designee or required to create, make, enter into, 
perform, amend or confirm any obligation of the Borrower to or in favor of Lender, is hereby ratified, 
approved, adopted and confirmed as if it had been validly and lawfully authorized upon and as of the date 
of such act or action, notwithstanding any invalidity, defect or insufficiency that may exist or may have 
existed in the power or authority of such person then executing such document or instrument, and every 
such person and each of the Authorized Signatories are hereby jointly and delegated all necessary power 
and authority to effect the foregoing. 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect until a 
certified copy of a duly adopted resolution effecting a revocation or amendment, as the case may be, shall 
have been received by Lender; provided that no such revocation or amendment shall affect the validity of 
any action or actions made or taken in reliance on such resolution(s) prior to the effective date of 
revocation.  In addition, all authorities herein granted shall apply with equal force and effect to the 
successors in office of the Authorized Signatories herein named. 
 







RESOLUTION 18-07 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT (00113226) 
Guerneville, California 


 


00113226 
P a g e  | 3 


 
 


 RESOLVED FURTHER, that effective on the date when this Resolution is delivered to Lender, 
any and all prior resolutions authorizing and empowering Authorized Signatories of the Borrower to take 
actions as described herein are hereby revoked; provided that no such revocation shall affect the validity 
of any action or actions made or taken by Lender prior to the effective date of revocation. 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Borrower is hereby 
authorized and directed to certify to Lender a copy of this Resolution, the names and specimen signatures 
of the Authorized Signatories, and if and when any change is made in the personnel of any Authorized 
Signatories, the fact of such change and the name and specimen signatures of the new Authorized 
Signatories.  Lender shall be entitled to rely on any such certification until a new certification is actually 
received by Lender. 
 


CERTIFICATE 
 
 The undersigned, Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Borrower, California quasi-government 
water utility, hereby certifies that:  (a) the Board of Directors of the Borrower, at a meeting duly called, 
noticed, convened and held on the 5th day of April, 2018, did adopt the foregoing resolutions in 
accordance with the Organizational Documents of the Borrower; (b) all approvals and authorizations 
required to effect the foregoing resolutions (including without limitation board, member, or stockholder 
approval, as applicable) have been obtained and remain in full force and effect; and (c) said resolutions 
are in full force and effect on the date hereof and have not been revoked or amended in any way.  
 
Dated this ______ day of ______________________, 20___ 
 
By:  _____________________________________________ 
 
Printed Name:   _Julie Kenny___________________________________ 
 
Title:  [X ] Secretary    [ ] Assistant Secretary 
 
 







 
 


1 


 Agreement No. 00113226SLA 


CREDIT AGREEMENT 


THIS CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of March 21, 2018 is entered into 
by and between SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Guerneville, California, a quasi-
government water utility (the “Borrower”), and COBANK, ACB, a federally-chartered instrumentality 
of the United States (“Lender”).  


RECITALS 


In consideration of the agreements set forth herein and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Borrower and Lender agree as follows: 


 
ARTICLE 1 Defined Terms; Accounting Principles.  Certain capitalized terms used in this 
Agreement bear the definitions given to them in this Agreement.  References to accounting standards are 
to United States generally accepted accounting principles, or those required of the regulatory agency 
having jurisdiction over the Borrower, including but not limited to the system of accounts established by 
the United States Department of Agriculture acting through Rural Development or the Rural Utilities 
Service or their predecessors (“RD/RUS”), if applicable, or such other commission or body as may be 
agreeable to Lender (the “Accounting Standards”). 


(A) The Facilities. 


1. Promissory Note.  In the event the Borrower desires to borrow from Lender and Lender is 
willing to lend to the Borrower, or in the event the parties desire to consolidate any existing 
loans hereunder, the parties will enter into a promissory note (a “Promissory Note”).  Each 
Promissory Note will set forth Lender’s commitment to make a loan or loans to the Borrower, 
the amount of the loan(s), the purpose of the loan(s), the interest rate or rate options 
applicable to the loan(s), the repayment terms of the loan(s), and any other terms and 
conditions applicable to the particular loan(s).  Each Promissory Note will also contain the 
Borrower’s promise to make payments of interest on the unpaid principal balance of the 
loan(s), and fees and premiums, if any, and to repay the principal balance of the loan(s).  
Each loan will be governed by the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement and in 
the Promissory Note relating to that loan. 


2. Availability.  Loans will be made available on any day on which Lender and the Federal 
Reserve Banks are open for business (a “Business Day”) upon the telephonic or written 
request of an authorized employee of the Borrower.  Requests for loans must be received by 
12:00 p.m. Denver, Colorado time on the date the loan is desired.  Loans will be made 
available by wire transfer of immediately available funds.  Wire transfers will be made to 
such account or accounts as may be authorized by the Borrower. 


3. Security.  The Borrower’s obligations under this Agreement and each Promissory Note will 
be secured by a statutory first lien on all equity that the Borrower may now own or hereafter 
acquire or be allocated in Lender.  In addition, except as otherwise provided in a Promissory 
Note or in a closing instruction letter signed by the parties (an “Instruction Letter”), the 
Borrower’s obligations hereunder and under each Promissory Note will be:







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
2 


 


1. secured by a first priority lien (subject only to exceptions approved in writing by Lender) 
and shared pro rata with RD/RUS on all real and personal property of the Borrower, 
whether now existing or hereafter acquired.  The Borrower agrees to take such steps, 
including, without limitation, the execution and recordation or filing, as applicable, of 
mortgages, deeds of trust, security agreements, intercreditor or parity agreements, pledge 
agreements, control agreements, financing statements, and amendments to any of the 
foregoing, and such other instruments and documents as Lender may require to enable 
Lender to obtain, perfect, and maintain a lien on such property, and the payment of any 
applicable mortgage recording, documentary stamp, or intangible taxes; and 


2. guaranteed by an unsecured or secured, limited or continuing guarantee of payment, in 
form and substance and from such parties as may be required by Lender from time to 
time. If Lender requires such guarantee(s) to be secured by a lien on the real and/or 
personal property of a guarantor (a “Guarantor”), Borrower will cause each Guarantor 
to take such steps, including, without limitation, the execution and recordation or filing, 
as applicable, of mortgages, deeds of trust, security agreements, pledge agreements, 
control agreements, financing statements, and amendments to any of the foregoing, and 
such other instruments and documents as Lender may require to enable Lender to obtain, 
perfect, and maintain a lien on such property, and the payment of any applicable 
mortgage recording, documentary stamp, or intangible taxes. 


4. Payments Generally.  The Borrower’s obligation to repay each loan will be evidenced by a 
Promissory Note.  Lender will maintain a record of all loans, the interest accrued thereon, and 
all payments made with respect thereto, and such record will, absent proof of manifest error, 
be conclusive evidence of the outstanding principal and interest on the loans.  Payments 
under each Promissory Note will be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds, by 
check, or by automated clearing house (ACH) or other similar cash handling processes as 
specified by separate agreement between the Borrower and Lender.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, payments under each Promissory Note will be made by automated clearing house 
(ACH), unless otherwise agreed in writing by Lender.  Wire transfers will be made to ABA 
No. 307088754 for advice to and credit of “CoBANK” (or to such other account as Lender 
may direct by notice).  The Borrower will give Lender telephonic notice no later than 12:00 
p.m. Denver, Colorado time on the day the Borrower intends to pay by wire of such intent, 
and funds received after 3:00 p.m. Denver, Colorado time will be credited on the next 
Business Day.  Checks will be mailed to CoBANK, Department 167, Denver, Colorado 
80291-0167 (or to such other place as Lender may direct by notice).  Credit for payment by 
check will not be given until the later of the next Business Day after receipt of the check or 
the day on which Lender receives immediately available funds. If any installment of principal 
or interest is due on a date that is not a Business Day, then such installment will be due and 
payable on the next Business Day.   


5. Broken Funding Surcharge.  Notwithstanding the terms of any Promissory Note giving the 
Borrower the right to repay any loan prior to the date it would otherwise be due and payable, 
the Borrower agrees to provide three Business Days’ prior written notice for any prepayment 
of a fixed rate balance and to pay to Lender a broken funding surcharge in the amount set 
forth below in the event the Borrower:  (a) repays any fixed rate balance prior to the last day 
of its fixed rate period (whether such payment is made voluntarily, as a result of an 
acceleration, or otherwise); (b) converts any fixed rate balance to another fixed rate or to a 
variable rate prior to the last day of the fixed rate period applicable to such balance; or 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
3 


 


(c) fails to borrow any fixed rate balance on the date scheduled therefor.  The surcharge will 
be in an amount equal to the greater of (1) the sum of: (i) the present value of any funding 
losses imputed by Lender to have been incurred as a result of such payment, conversion or 
failure; plus (ii) a per annum yield of 0.50% of the amount repaid, converted or not borrowed 
for the period such amount was scheduled to have been outstanding at such fixed rate, or (2) 
$300.00.  Any surcharge will be determined and calculated in accordance with methodology 
established by Lender, a copy of which will be made available upon request.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a conflict between the provisions of this 
section and of the broken funding charge section of a forward fix agreement between Lender 
and the Borrower, the provisions of the forward fix agreement will control. 


6. Taxes; Change in Law.  Any payment by the Borrower to Lender will be made net of any 
taxes (other than income and similar taxes imposed on or measured by Lender’s overall net 
income).  If any change in any law, rule, regulation, code, ordinance, order or the like to 
which the Borrower is subject, including, without limitation, all laws relating to 
environmental protection, and taxes (collectively, “Laws”), increases the cost of making or 
maintaining any loan (or any associated commitment to lend), or reduces the amount received 
or receivable by Lender hereunder then, upon request, the Borrower will pay to Lender such 
additional amount as will compensate Lender for such additional costs incurred or reduction 
suffered. 


(B) Conditions Precedent. 


7. Conditions to Initial Promissory Note.  Lender’s obligation to extend credit under the 
initial Promissory Note hereunder is subject to the condition precedent that Lender receive, in 
form and substance satisfactory to Lender, each of the following, except as otherwise 
provided in the Promissory Note or in an Instruction Letter: 


1. This Agreement.  A duly executed copy of this Agreement, the other Loan Documents 
(as defined below), the Instruction Letter accompanying this Agreement, and all 
instruments and documents contemplated hereby and thereby. 


2. Banking Service Agreements.  A duly completed and executed copy of any banking 
service agreement, including any agreement relating to the provision by Lender of cash 
management services, required by Lender from time to time.  Lender will be entitled to 
rely on (and will incur no liability to the Borrower in acting on) any request or direction 
furnished in accordance with the terms thereof. 


8. Conditions to Each Promissory Note.  Lender’s obligations to extend credit under each 
Promissory Note hereunder, including the initial Promissory Note, is subject to the condition 
precedent that Lender receive, in form and substance satisfactory to Lender, each of 
the following, except as otherwise provided in the Promissory Note or in an Instruction 
Letter: 


1. Promissory Note.  A duly executed copy of the Promissory Note and all instruments and 
documents contemplated by the Promissory Note. 


2. Instruction Letter.  Any and all items or requirements detailed in an Instruction Letter. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
4 


 


3. Evidence of Perfection.  Such evidence as Lender may require that it has duly perfected 
liens as required under this Agreement. 


4. Evidence of Authority.  Such certified board resolutions, certificates of incumbency, and 
other evidence that Lender may require that the Promissory Note, all instruments and 
documents executed in connection therewith, and, in the case of the initial Promissory 
Note hereto, this Agreement, the other Loan Documents (as defined below) and all 
instruments and documents executed in connection herewith and therewith, including any 
security documents, have been duly authorized and executed. 


5. Fees and Other Charges.  Any fees or other charges provided for herein, in the 
Promissory Note or in any invoice provided by Lender. 


6. Insurance.  Such evidence as Lender may require that the Borrower is in compliance 
with Section 5.4 below. 


7. Consents and Approvals.  Evidence as Lender may require that all regulatory and other 
consents and approvals referred to in Section 4.6 below have been obtained and are in full 
force and effect. 


8. Opinion of Counsel.  An opinion of counsel to the Borrower (which counsel must be 
acceptable to Lender). 


9. Conditions to Each Loan.  Lender’s obligation under each Promissory Note to make any 
loan to the Borrower thereunder is subject to the condition that no “Event of Default” (as 
defined in Section 8.1 below) or event that, with the giving of notice and/or the passage of 
time and/or the occurrence of any other condition, would ripen into an Event of Default (a 
“Potential Default”) will have occurred and be continuing or would be caused by the making 
of such loan. 


(C) Representations and Warranties.   


The execution by the Borrower of this Agreement and each Promissory Note hereunder, or any renewal or 
extension by Lender of any Promissory Note hereunder, will constitute a representation and warranty by 
the Borrower that: 


10. Instruction Letter; Loan Documents.  Each representation and warranty and all information 
set forth in any Instruction Letter and/or any of the Loan Documents (as defined below) 
and/or any other document submitted in connection with, or to induce Lender to enter into, 
such Promissory Note is correct in all material respects as of the date of such Promissory 
Note. 


11. Compliance; Legal Proceedings.  The Borrower and its subsidiaries and all property owned 
or leased or proposed to be acquired with the proceeds of any Promissory Note hereunder by 
the Borrower and/or its subsidiaries and all of its/their operations are in compliance with all 
applicable Laws and the terms of the Loan Documents and no Event of Default or Potential 
Default exists or is continuing.  In addition, there are no pending legal, arbitration, or 
governmental actions or proceedings to which the Borrower or any subsidiary is a party or to 
which any of its or any subsidiaries’ property is subject which, if adversely determined, might 
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, operations, properties, profits, or 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
5 


 


business of the Borrower or any subsidiary, and to the best of the Borrower’s knowledge, no 
such actions or proceedings are threatened or contemplated. 


12. Organization; Good Standing.  The Borrower (a) is duly organized, validly existing and in 
good standing under the Laws of its jurisdiction of organization, (b) has the lawful power to 
own or lease its properties and to engage in the business it conducts or proposes to conduct, 
and (c) is duly qualified and in good standing in each jurisdiction where the property owned 
or leased by it or the nature of the business transacted by it makes such qualification 
necessary. 


13. Binding Agreement.  The Loan Documents constitute legal, valid, and binding obligations of 
the Borrower that are enforceable in accordance with their terms. 


14. Conflicting Agreements.  Neither this Agreement nor any Promissory Note, or other 
instrument or document securing or otherwise relating hereto or to any Promissory Note 
(each a “Loan Document” and collectively, at any time, the “Loan Documents”) conflicts 
with, or constitutes (with or without the giving of notice and/or the passage of time and/or the 
occurrence of any other condition) a default under, any other agreement to which the 
Borrower is a party or by which it or any of its property may be bound or affected, and does 
not conflict with any provision of its bylaws, articles of incorporation or other organizational 
documents. 


15. Consents and Approvals.  No consent, permission, authorization, order or license of any 
governmental authority or of any party to any agreement to which the Borrower is a party or 
by which it or any of its property may be bound or affected, is necessary in connection with 
the project, acquisition or other activity being financed by such Promissory Note, or the 
execution, delivery, performance or enforcement of any Loan Document, except as have been 
obtained and are in full force and effect. 


16. Budgets; Full Disclosure.  All budgets, projections, feasibility studies, and other 
documentation submitted by the Borrower to Lender in connection with, or to induce Lender 
to enter into, such Promissory Note are based upon assumptions that are reasonable and 
realistic, and as of the date of such Promissory Note, no fact has come to light, and no event 
has occurred, that would cause any assumption made therein to not be reasonable or realistic.  
No Loan Document or other certificate, statement, agreement, or document furnished to 
Lender in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document (a) contains any 
untrue statement of a material fact, or (b) fails to state a material fact necessary in order to 
make the statements contained herein or therein, in light of the circumstances under which 
they were made, not misleading.  The Borrower is not aware of any Material Adverse Change 
that has not been disclosed in writing to Lender.  A “Material Adverse Change” means any 
material adverse change, as reasonably determined by Lender, in the condition, financial or 
otherwise, operations, business, liabilities (actual or contingent) or properties of the Borrower 
or in its ability to perform its obligations hereunder, under any security instrument or 
document, or under any other Loan Document. 


17. Accurate Financial Information.  Each submission of financial information or documents 
relating to the Borrower will constitute a representation and warranty by the Borrower that 
such information and documents (a) are true and accurate in all material respects, and (b) do 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
6 


 


not fail to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained therein, in 
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 


18. ERISA.  The Borrower and its subsidiaries are in compliance in all material respects with the 
applicable provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, and the 
regulations and published interpretations thereunder from time to time (“ERISA”). 


19. Margin Stock.  No Borrower is engaged or intends to engage principally, or as one of its 
important activities, in the business of extending credit for the purpose, immediately, 
incidentally or ultimately, of purchasing or carrying margin stock (within the meaning of 
Regulation U, T or X as promulgated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System of the United States of America (the “Board”)).  No part of the proceeds of any loan 
made by Lender to the Borrower has been or will be used, immediately, incidentally or 
ultimately, to purchase or carry any margin stock or to extend credit to others for the purpose 
of purchasing or carrying any margin stock or in any way that is inconsistent with the 
provisions of the regulations of the Board.  No Borrower or any subsidiary, if any, of any 
Borrower holds or intends to hold margin stock in such amounts that more than 25% of the 
reasonable value of the assets of any Borrower or subsidiary, if any, of any Borrower are or 
will be represented by margin stock. 


20. Water Rights and System Condition.  The Borrower has water rights with such amounts, 
priorities and qualities as are necessary to service adequately the Borrower’s customers and 
members.  The Borrower controls, owns, or has access to all such water rights free and clear 
of the interest of any third party and has not suffered or permitted any transfer or 
encumbrance of such water rights, has not abandoned such water rights, or any of them, and 
has not done any act or thing which would impair or cause the loss of any such water rights.  
The Borrower’s utility facilities reasonably meet present demand in all material respects, are 
constructed in a good and professional manner, are in good working order and condition, and 
comply in all material respects with all applicable law. 


21. Rate Matters.  The Borrower’s rates for the provision of water have been approved, if 
applicable, by any and all necessary governmental regulatory authorities, including, without 
limitation, each public service commission or public utilities commission that may have 
jurisdiction over the operations and rates of the Borrower.  Further, there is no pending, and 
to the Borrower’s knowledge, no threatened proceeding before any governmental authority, 
the objective or result of which is or could be to materially reduce or otherwise materially 
adversely change any of the Borrower’s rates for the provision of water and/or waste water 
services, or otherwise have a material adverse effect on the condition, financial or otherwise, 
operations, properties, or business of the Borrower. 


(D) Affirmative Covenants.   


Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Lender, while this Agreement is in effect, the Borrower agrees 
to, and with respect to Sections 5.3, 5.4, 5.5, and 5.8, agrees to cause each subsidiary, if any, to: 
 


22. Reports and Notices.  Furnish to Lender: 


1. Annual Financial Statements.  As soon as available, but in no event more than 180 days 
after the end of each fiscal year of the Borrower occurring during the term hereof, annual 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
7 


 


financial statements of the Borrower, prepared in a manner acceptable to Lender.  Such 
financial statements will be prepared in reasonable detail acceptable to Lender. 


2. Interim Financial Statements.  Such interim financial statements as Lender may request 
from time to time prepared in reasonable detail acceptable to Lender. 


3. Notice of Default.  Promptly after becoming aware thereof, notice of the occurrence of 
an Event of Default or a Potential Default, including, without limitation, any error in the 
Borrower’s financial information previously provided to Lender and the occurrence of 
any breach, default, event of default or event that, with the giving of notice and/or the 
passage of time and/or the occurrence of any other condition, would become a breach, 
default or event of default under any loan agreement, indenture, mortgage, or other credit 
or security agreement or instrument to which the Borrower is a party or by which it or 
any of its property may be bound or affected. 


4. Notice of Litigation, Environmental Matters, Etc.  Promptly after becoming aware 
thereof, notice of:  (1) the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding before any 
court, arbitrator or governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency, or 
instrumentality having jurisdiction over the Borrower, that, if adversely decided, could 
result in a Material Adverse Change; (2) the receipt of any notice, indictment, pleading or 
other communication alleging a condition that may require the Borrower to undertake or 
to contribute to a clean-up or other response under any environmental Law, or that seeks 
penalties, damages, injunctive relief, criminal sanctions or other relief as a result of an 
alleged violation of any such Law, or that claims personal injury or property damage as a 
result of environmental factors or conditions; and (3) any matter that could have a 
material adverse effect on the Borrower, including any decision of any regulatory 
authority or commission. 


5. Notice of Certain Events.  (1) Notice at least 30 days prior thereto, of any change in the 
Borrower’s name or corporate structure; (2) notice at least 30 days prior thereto, of any 
change in the Borrower’s organizational documents which changes must be approved in 
writing by Lender in its reasonable discretion; (3) notice at least 30 days prior thereto, of 
any change in the principal place of business of the Borrower or the office where its 
records concerning its accounts are kept; and (4) as soon as available after any changes 
thereto, copies of the Borrower’s organizational documents certified by the Borrower’s 
Secretary or equivalent officer acceptable to Lender. 


23. Instruction Letter.  Comply with any and all requirements detailed in an Instruction Letter. 


24. Corporate Existence, Etc.  Preserve and keep in full force and effect its existence and good 
standing in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or formation, qualify and remain qualified to 
transact business in all jurisdictions where such qualification is required, and obtain and 
maintain all licenses, certificates, permits, authorizations, approvals, and the like that are 
material to the conduct of its business or required by any Law. 


25. Insurance.   


26. Maintain insurance with reputable and financially sound insurance companies or associations, 
including self-insurance to the extent customary, acceptable to Lender in such amounts and 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
8 


 


covering such risks as are usually carried by companies engaged in the same or similar 
business and similarly situated, and make such increases in the type or amount of coverage as 
Lender may reasonably request.  All such policies insuring any collateral for the Borrower’s 
obligations to Lender will have additional insured, mortgagee and lender’s loss payee clauses 
or endorsements, as applicable, in form and substance satisfactory to Lender.  At Lender’s 
request, the Borrower agrees to deliver to Lender such proof of compliance with this section 
as Lender may require. 


1. Property Maintenance.  Maintain in good repair, working order and condition (ordinary 
wear and tear excepted) in accordance with the general practice of other businesses of similar 
character and size, all of those properties useful or necessary to its business, and make all 
alterations, replacements, and improvements thereto as may from time to time be necessary in 
order to ensure that its properties remain in good working order and condition.  The Borrower 
agrees that at Lender’s request, which request may not be made more than once a year, the 
Borrower will furnish to Lender a report on the condition of the Borrower’s property 
prepared by a professional engineer satisfactory to Lender. 


27. Inspection.  Permit Lender or its agents, upon reasonable notice and during normal business 
hours or at such other times as the parties may agree, to inspect and visit any of its properties, 
examine and make excerpts from its books and records, and to discuss its business affairs, 
finances and accounts with its officers, directors, employees, and independent certified public 
accountants and to conduct reviews of any collateral.   


28. Books and Records.  Maintain and keep proper books and records of account in which full, 
true and correct entries of all its dealings, business and financial affairs will be made in 
accordance with the Accounting Standards. 


29. Compliance With Laws.  Comply in all material respects with all Laws and any patron or 
member investment program applicable to the Borrower.  In addition, the Borrower agrees to 
cause all persons occupying or present on any of its properties to comply in all material 
respects with all Laws relating to such properties. 


30. Further Assurances and Other Information.  From time to time and at its expense, execute 
and deliver such documents and do such other acts and things as Lender in its sole discretion 
may deem necessary or advisable from time to time in order to more fully carry out the 
provisions and purpose of the Loan Documents, including delivery of such other information 
regarding the condition or operations, financial or otherwise, of the Borrower as Lender may 
from time to time reasonably request, including, but not limited to, copies of all pleadings, 
notices and communications referred to in Section 5.1(d) above. 


31. Capital.  INTENTIONALLY OMITTED 


32. Delivery of Original Loan Documents.  If copies of any executed Loan Documents are 
delivered to Lender as provided in Article 3 above, immediately deliver to Lender the original 
executed versions of such Loan Documents. 


33. Indemnity for Taxes.  At all times indemnify and hold and save Lender harmless from and 
against any and all actions or causes of action, claims, demands, liabilities, loss, damage or 
expense of whatsoever kind and nature incurred by Lender as a result of the non-payment of 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
9 


 


any documentary stamp tax, intangible tax, interest or penalties associated therewith or any 
other local, state or federal assessment required to be paid, but not paid in conjunction with 
the indebtedness evidenced by the Loan Documents.  The Borrower agrees to pay to Lender, 
its successors and assigns, all sums of money requested by Lender hereunder within ten days 
of such request, which Lender will or may advance, pay or cause to be paid, or become liable 
to pay, on account of or in connection with failure to pay as required by the regulations of the 
governmental authority so imposing said payment.  Lender will be entitled to charge for any 
and all disbursements made by it in good faith, under the reasonable belief that it or the 
Borrower is or was liable for the amount so assessed.  Any default by the Borrower in making 
any payments required under this covenant will constitute a payment Event of Default under 
the Loan Documents and Lender may, at its option, declare the entire amount of principal 
plus accrued interest thereon due and payable without notice or demand. 


34. ERISA.  The Borrower and its subsidiaries, for so long as this Agreement remains 
outstanding, will remain in compliance in all material respects with the applicable provisions 
of ERISA, the failure to comply with which has or may have a material adverse effect on the 
Borrower. 


35. Water Rights and/or Supplies.  Maintain or procure water rights and/or supplies with such 
amounts, priorities and qualities as are necessary to service adequately the Borrower’s 
customers and members.  The Borrower will continue to control, own or have access to all 
such water rights and/or supplies free and clear of the interest of any third party, will not 
suffer or permit any transfer or encumbrance of such water rights and/or supplies, will not 
abandon such water rights and/or supplies, or any of them, and will not do any act or thing 
that would impair or cause the loss of any such water rights and/or supplies. 


(E) Negative Covenants.  


Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Lender, while this Agreement is in effect, the Borrower will not: 


36. Other Indebtedness.  Create, incur, assume or allow to exist, directly or indirectly, any 
indebtedness or liability for borrowed money (including trade or bankers’ acceptances), 
letters of credit, or for the deferred purchase price of property or services (including leases 
that should be capitalized on the books of the lessee in accordance with the Accounting 
Standards), except for: 


1. debt to Lender. 


2. accounts payable to trade creditors incurred in the ordinary course of business. 


3. current operating liabilities (other than for borrowed money) incurred in the ordinary 
course of business. 


4. debt of the Borrower to the State Revolving Fund ("SRF"). 


5. debt of the Borrower to RD/RUS. 


6. purchase money security indebtedness, provided that such indebtedness does not exceed 
the purchase price of the asset(s) being acquired. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
10 


 


7. debt of the Borrower in existence on the date hereof to Citizens National Bank, on terms 
and conditions satisfactory to Lender. 


37. Contingent Liabilities.  Assume, guarantee, become liable as a surety, endorse, contingently 
agree to purchase, or otherwise be or become liable, directly or indirectly (including, but not 
limited to, by means of a maintenance agreement, an asset or stock purchase agreement, or 
any other agreement designed to ensure any creditor against loss), for or on account of the 
obligation of any person or entity, except by the endorsement of negotiable instruments for 
deposit or collection or similar transactions in the ordinary course of the Borrower’s business. 


38. Liens.  Create, incur, assume, or allow to exist any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, lien 
(including the lien of an attachment, judgment, or execution), security interest, or other 
encumbrance of any kind upon any of its property, real or personal (collectively, “Liens”).  
The foregoing restrictions will not apply to: 


1. Liens in favor of Lender . 


2. Liens for taxes, assessments, or governmental charges that are not past due. 


3. pledges and deposits under workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, and social 
security Laws. 


4. pledges and deposits to secure the performance of bids, tenders, contracts (other than 
contracts for payment of money), and like obligations arising in the ordinary course of 
business as conducted on the date hereof. 


5. Liens imposed by Law in favor of mechanics, material suppliers, warehouses, and like 
persons that secure obligations that are not past due. 


6. easements, rights-of-way, restrictions, and other similar encumbrances that, in the 
aggregate, do not materially interfere with the occupation, use, and enjoyment of the 
property or assets encumbered thereby in the normal course of business or materially 
impair the value of the property subject thereto. 


7. purchase money Liens to secure indebtedness permitted hereunder. 


39. Transactions with Affiliates.  Enter into any transaction with any affiliate except in the 
ordinary course of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of its business and upon fair 
and reasonable terms no less favorable to it than it would obtain in a comparable arm’s-length 
transaction with a person or entity that was not an affiliate. 


40. Loans and Investments.  Make any loan or advance to, or make any investment in, or make 
any capital contribution to, or purchase or make any commitment to purchase any stock, 
bonds, notes or other securities of any person or entity, except for: 


1. securities or deposits issued, guaranteed or fully insured as to payment by the United 
States of America or any agency thereof. 


2. obligation of, Lender. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
11 


 


41. Dividends and Distributions.  Declare or pay any dividends or make any other distribution 
of assets to shareholders of the Borrower, or retire, redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire for 
value any capital stock of the Borrower. 


42. Mergers, Acquisitions, Etc.  Merge or consolidate with any other entity or acquire all or a 
material part of the assets of any other person or entity, or form or create any new subsidiary, 
or commence operations under any other name, organization, or entity, including any joint 
venture. 


43. Transfer of Assets.  Sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise dispose of any of its assets, except:  (a) 
in the ordinary course of business; and (b) the sale, transfer or disposal of any obsolete or 
worn-out assets that are no longer necessary or required in the conduct of the Borrower’s 
business. 


44. Change in Business.  Engage in any business activities or operations substantially different 
from or unrelated to the Borrower’s present business activities or operations. 


45. Use of Proceeds.  Use the proceeds of any loan made by Lender to the Borrower, whether 
directly or indirectly, and whether immediately, incidentally or ultimately, to purchase or 
carry margin stock (within the meaning of Regulation U of the Board) or to extend credit to 
others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying margin stock or to refund indebtedness 
originally incurred for such purpose. 


(F) Financial Covenants. 


  INTENTIONALLY OMITTED. 


(G) Default. 


46. Each of the following will constitute an “Event of Default” hereunder: 


1. Payment Default.  The Borrower should fail to make any payment to Lender when due. 


2. Representations and Warranties.  Any representation, warranty, certification or 
statement of fact made at any time by the Borrower, herein or in any other Loan 
Document, or in any certificate, other instrument or statement furnished to Lender by or 
on behalf of the Borrower, will have been false or misleading in any material respect as 
of the time it was made or furnished. 


3. Covenants.  The Borrower will default in the observance or performance of any covenant 
set forth in Article 5 (other than Sections 5.1(c), 5.1(d), 5.1(e)(1), and 5.1(e)(2) above), 
and such default continues for 30 days after written notice thereof will have been 
delivered to the Borrower by Lender. 


4. Other Covenants and Agreements.  The Borrower will default in the observance or 
performance of Sections 5.1(c), 5.1(d), 5.1(e)(1), and 5.1(e)(2) or any other covenant or 
agreement contained herein or in any other Loan Document or if Borrower uses the 
proceeds of any loan for any unauthorized purpose. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
12 


 


5. Cross Default.  The Borrower should, after any applicable grace period, breach or be in 
default under the terms of any other Loan Document (including, without limitation, any 
security instrument or document) or any other agreement between the Borrower and 
Lender, or between the Borrower and any affiliate of Lender, including without limitation 
Farm Credit Leasing Services Corporation. 


6. Other Indebtedness.  The Borrower should fail to pay when due any indebtedness to any 
other person or entity for borrowed money or any long-term obligation for the deferred 
purchase price of property (including any capitalized lease), or any other event occurs 
that, under any agreement or instrument relating to such indebtedness or obligation, has 
the effect of accelerating or permitting the acceleration of such indebtedness or 
obligation, whether or not such indebtedness or obligation is actually accelerated or the 
right to accelerate is conditioned on the giving of notice, the passage of time, or 
otherwise. 


7. Judgments.  A judgment, decree, or order for the payment of money will have been 
rendered against the Borrower and either:  (1) enforcement proceedings will have been 
commenced; (2) a Lien prohibited by this Agreement, any security instrument, or any 
other Loan Document, will have been obtained; or (3) such judgment, decree, or order 
will continue unsatisfied and in effect for a period of 30 consecutive days without being 
vacated, discharged, satisfied, bonded, or stayed pending appeal. 


8. Loan Document Unenforceable.  Any of the Loan Documents ceases to be a legal, 
valid, and binding agreement enforceable against the Borrower or any Guarantor, if any 
or is in any way terminated (except in accordance with its terms) or becomes or is 
declared ineffective or inoperative. 


9. Revocation of Guaranty.  Any guaranty, suretyship, subordination agreement, 
maintenance agreement, or other agreement furnished in connection with the Borrower’s 
obligations hereunder and under any Promissory Note will, at any time, cease to be in full 
force and effect, or will be revoked or declared null and void, or the validity thereof will 
be contested by the Guarantor, surety or other maker thereof, or the Guarantor will deny 
any further liability or obligations thereunder, or will fail to perform its obligations 
thereunder, or any representation or warranty set forth therein will be breached, or the 
Guarantor will breach or be in default under the terms of any other agreement with 
Lender (including any loan agreement or security agreement), or a default set forth in 
sections (f) through (h) will occur with respect to the Guarantor. 


10. Insolvency, Etc.  The Borrower will:  (1) become insolvent or will generally not, or will 
be unable to, or will admit in writing its inability to, pay its debts as they become due; or 
(2) suspend its business operations or a material part thereof or make an assignment for 
the benefit of creditors; or (3) apply for, consent to, or acquiesce in the appointment of a 
trustee, receiver, or other custodian for it or any of its property; or (4) have commenced 
against it any action or proceeding for the appointment of a trustee, receiver, or other 
custodian and such action or proceeding is not dismissed within 30 days of the date 
thereof, or a trustee, receiver, or other custodian is appointed for all or any part of its 
property; or (5) receive notice from any regulatory or governmental authority to the effect 
that such authority intends to replace the management of the Borrower or assume control 
over the Borrower; or (6) commence or have commenced against it any proceeding under 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
13 


 


any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, or 
liquidation law of any jurisdiction. 


11. Material Adverse Change.  Any Material Adverse Change occurs, as reasonably 
determined by Lender. 


47. Remedies. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default or 
Potential Default, Lender will have no obligation to extend or continue to extend credit to the 
Borrower and may discontinue doing so at any time without prior notice or other limitation.  
In addition, upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default, Lender 
may, upon notice to the Borrower: 


1. Termination and Acceleration.  Terminate any commitment and declare the unpaid 
principal balance of the loans, all accrued interest thereon, and all other amounts payable 
under this Agreement, each Promissory Note, and all other Loan Documents to be 
immediately due and payable.  Upon such a declaration, the unpaid principal balance of 
the loans and all such other amounts will become immediately due and payable, without 
protest, presentment, demand, or further notice of any kind, all of which are hereby 
expressly waived by the Borrower. 


2. Enforcement.  Proceed to protect, exercise, and enforce such rights and remedies as may 
be provided by this Agreement, any security instrument or document, any other Loan 
Document, or under Law.  Each and every one of such rights and remedies will be 
cumulative and may be exercised from time to time, and no failure on the part of Lender 
to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right or remedy will operate as a waiver 
thereof, and no single or partial exercise of any right or remedy will preclude any future 
or other exercise thereof, or the exercise of any other right.  Without limiting the 
foregoing, Lender may hold and/or set off and apply against the Borrower’s obligations 
to Lender the proceeds of any equity in Lender, any cash collateral held by Lender, or 
any balances held by Lender for the Borrower’s account (whether or not such balances 
are then due). 


3. Application of Funds.  Lender may apply all payments received by it to the Borrower’s 
obligations to Lender in such order and manner as Lender may elect in its sole discretion. 


 (d) CONSENT TO SUIT.  THE BORROWER CONSENTS TO THE REMEDIES 
PROVIDED HEREIN, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, SUIT FOR ENFORCEMENT OF THE 
TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, EACH PROMISSORY NOTE, AND ALL OTHER LOAN 
DOCUMENTS, AND ALL APPROPRIATE REMEDIES AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, 
NOTWITHSTANDING PRINCIPLES OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY WHICH OTHERWISE MAY BE 
APPLICABLE. 


In addition to the rights and remedies set forth above and notwithstanding any Promissory Note:  (1) upon 
the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, at Lender’s option in each instance, the 
entire indebtedness outstanding hereunder and under each Promissory Note will bear interest from the 
date of such Event of Default until such Event of Default will have been waived or cured in a manner 
satisfactory to Lender at 4.00% per annum in excess of the rate(s) of interest that would otherwise be in 
effect on that loan under the terms of the applicable Promissory Note; and (2) after the maturity of any 
loan (whether as a result of acceleration or otherwise), the unpaid principal balance of such loan 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
14 


 


(including without limitation, principal, interest, fees and expenses) will automatically bear interest at 
4.00% per annum in excess of the rate(s) of interest that would otherwise be in effect on that loan under 
the terms of the Promissory Note.  All interest provided for herein will be payable on demand and will be 
calculated on the basis of a year consisting of 360 days. 


(H) Miscellaneous. 


48. Amendments; Waivers; Etc.  No amendment, modification, or waiver of any provision of 
this Agreement or the other Loan Documents, and no consent to any departure by the 
Borrower herefrom or therefrom, will be effective unless approved by Lender and contained 
in a writing signed by or on behalf of Lender, and then such waiver or consent will be 
effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given.  In the 
event this Agreement is amended or restated, each such amendment or restatement will be 
applicable to all Promissory Notes hereto. 


(I) Expenses; Indemnification; Damage Waiver. 


49. Costs and Expenses.  To the extent allowed by Law, the Borrower agrees to pay all 
reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses (including the fees and expenses of counsel 
retained or employed by Lender) incurred by Lender and any participants of Lender in 
connection with the origination, administration, collection and enforcement of this 
Agreement and the other Loan Documents, including, without limitation, all costs and 
expenses incurred in obtaining, perfecting, maintaining, determining the priority of, and 
releasing any security for the Borrower’s obligations to Lender, and any stamp, intangible, 
transfer or like tax incurred in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document 
or the recording hereof or thereof. 


50. Indemnification.  The Borrower indemnifies Lender, its affiliates and its and their respective 
officers, directors, employees, agents and advisors (each an “Indemnitee”) against, and holds 
each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities and related 
expenses (including fees and expenses of employed or retained counsel) incurred by any 
Indemnitee or asserted against any Indemnitee by any third party or by the Borrower arising 
out of or as a result of (a) the execution or delivery of any Loan Document, the performance 
or nonperformance by the Borrower of its obligations under any Loan Document or the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the use of the proceeds 
therefrom, (b) breach of representations, warranties or covenants of the Borrower under any 
Loan Document, or (c) any actual or prospective claim, litigation, investigation or proceeding 
relating to any of the foregoing, including any such items or losses relating to or arising under 
environmental Laws or pertaining to environmental matters, regardless whether any 
Indemnitee is a party thereto; provided that such indemnity will not, as to an Indemnitee, be 
available to the extent that such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or related expenses are 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction by a final and nonappealable judgment to 
have resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee. 


51. Waiver of Consequential Damages.  To the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, the 
Borrower will not assert, and hereby waives, any claim against any Indemnitee, on any theory 
of liability, for special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages arising out of, in 
connection with, or as a result of, any Loan Document, the transactions contemplated thereby 
or the use of the proceeds thereof. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
15 


 


52. Notices.  All notices hereunder will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given 
when addressed to the party intended to receive the same at the address of such party set forth 
below (or such other address either party may specify by like notice), (a) upon delivery if 
personally delivered to a party at such address, (b) three days after the same is deposited in 
the United States mail as first class, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage paid, (c) 
one business day after the same has been deposited with Federal Express or another 
nationally recognized overnight courier service if designated for next-day delivery, and (d) 
upon delivery if sent by facsimile or electronic mail with confirmation of delivery of the 
same:  


If to Lender, as follows: 
 
For general correspondence purposes: 
P.O. Box 5110 
Denver, Colorado  80217-5110 
 
For direct delivery purposes, when desired: 
6340 South Fiddlers Green Circle 
Greenwood Village, Colorado  80111-1914 
 
Attention:  Credit Information Services  
Fax No.:  (303) 224-6101 
 


If to the Borrower, as follows: 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
P.O. Box 48 
Guerneville, California  95446 
 
17081 Highway 116 
Guerneville, California  95446 
 
Attention:  General Manager 
Fax No.:  (   )    - 


 
53. Effectiveness and Severability.  This Agreement will continue in effect until:  (a) all 


indebtedness and obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement and the other Loan 
Documents have been paid or satisfied; (b) Lender has no commitment to extend credit to or 
for the account of the Borrower under any Promissory Note; and (c) either party sends written 
notice to the other party terminating this Agreement.  Any provision of this Agreement or any 
other Loan Document that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction will be 
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceable without invalidating the 
remaining provisions hereof or thereof. 


54. Successors and Assigns. 


1. Successors and Assigns Generally.  This Agreement and the other Loan Documents will 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Borrower and Lender and their respective 
successors and assigns, except that the Borrower may not assign or transfer its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement or the other Loan Documents without the prior written 
consent of Lender. 


2. Participations, Etc.  From time to time, Lender may sell to one or more banks, financial 
institutions, or other lenders a participation in one or more of the loans or other 
extensions of credit made pursuant to this Agreement.  However, no such participation 
will relieve Lender of any commitment made to the Borrower hereunder.  In connection 
with the foregoing, Lender may disclose information concerning the Borrower and its 
subsidiaries, if any, to any participant or prospective participant, provided that such 
participant or prospective participant agrees to keep such information confidential.  
Patronage distributions in the event of a sale of a participation interest will be governed 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
16 


 


by Lender’s Bylaws and Capital Plan (as each may be amended from time to time).  A 
sale of a participation interest may include certain voting rights of the participants 
regarding the loans hereunder (including without limitation the administration, servicing, 
and enforcement thereof).  Lender agrees to give written notification to the Borrower of 
any sale of a participation interest. 


55. Integration; Other Types of Credit; Counterparts. 


1. Integration.  The Loan Documents are intended by the parties to be a complete and final 
expression of their agreement.  Each Promissory Note will be deemed to incorporate all 
of the terms and conditions of this Agreement as if fully set forth therein.  Without 
limiting the foregoing, any capitalized term utilized in any Promissory Note (or in any 
amendment to this Agreement or Promissory Note) and not otherwise defined in the 
Promissory Note (or amendment) will have the meaning set forth herein or, if applicable, 
in the Accounting Standards.  In the event the Accounting Standards are changed after 
the date hereof, then all such changes will be applicable hereto, unless Lender otherwise 
specifies in writing. 


2. Other Types of Credit.  From time to time, Lender may issue letters of credit or extend 
other types of credit to or for the account of the Borrower.  In the event the parties desire 
to do so under the terms of this Agreement, then the agreement of the parties with respect 
thereto may be set forth in a Promissory Note and this Agreement will be applicable 
thereto. 


3. Counterparts.  This Agreement, each Promissory Note and any other Loan Document 
may be executed in counterparts, each of which will constitute an original, but all of 
which when taken together will constitute a single contract.  Delivery of an executed 
counterpart of a signature page of this Agreement, each Promissory Note and any other 
Loan Document by facsimile or other electronic means will be as effective as delivery of 
a manually executed counterpart of each such agreement. 


56. Applicable Law; Submission to Jurisdiction; Service of Process; Waiver of Venue; 
Waiver of Jury Trial. 


1. Applicable Law.  Without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws and except to 
the extent governed by federal law, the Laws of the State of Colorado, without reference 
to choice of law doctrine, will govern this Agreement, each Promissory Note and any 
other Loan Document for which Colorado is specified as the applicable law, and all 
disputes and matters between the parties to this Agreement, including all disputes and 
matters whatsoever arising under, in connection with or incident to the lending and/or 
leasing or other business relationship between the parties, and the rights and obligations 
of the parties to this Agreement or any other Loan Document by and between the parties 
for which Colorado is specified as the applicable law. 


2. Submission to Jurisdiction; Service of Process.  The Borrower hereby irrevocably 
consents to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal court in Denver, 
Colorado, and consents that Lender may effect any service of process in the manner and 
at the Borrower’s address set forth herein for providing notice or demand; provided that 
nothing contained in this Agreement will prevent Lender from bringing any action, 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
17 


 


enforcing any award or judgment or exercising any rights against the Borrower 
individually, against any collateral or against any property of the Borrower within any 
other county, state or other foreign or domestic jurisdiction. 


3. Waiver of Venue.  The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the venue provided 
above is the most convenient forum for the Borrower and Lender.  The Borrower waives 
any objection to venue and any objection based on a more convenient forum in any action 
instituted under this Agreement. 


4. Waiver of Jury Trial.  The Borrower and Lender each hereby irrevocably waives any 
right it may have to a trial by jury in connection with any action directly or indirectly 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any other Loan Document.  Each party 
hereto (1) certifies that no representative, administrative agent or attorney of any other 
person has represented, expressly or otherwise, that such other person would not, in the 
event of litigation, seek to enforce the foregoing waiver and (2) acknowledges that it and 
the other parties hereto have been induced to enter into this Agreement and other Loan 
Documents by, among other things, the mutual waivers and certifications in this section. 


57. USA Patriot Act Notice.  Lender hereby notifies the Borrower that pursuant to the 
requirements of the USA Patriot Act, it is required to obtain, verify, and record information 
that identifies the Borrower in accordance with the USA Patriot Act.  The Borrower 
covenants and agrees it will not, and agrees to cause each of its subsidiaries not to, at any 
time, directly or indirectly be (a) a person with whom Lender is restricted from doing 
business under any Anti-Terrorism Law, (b) engaged in any business involved in making or 
receiving any contribution of funds, goods or services to or for the benefit of such a person or 
in any transaction that evades or avoids, or has the purpose of evading or avoiding, the 
prohibitions set forth in any Anti-Terrorism Law, or (c) otherwise in violation of any Anti-
Terrorism Law (the Borrower will and will cause each of its subsidiaries to provide to Lender 
any certifications or information that Lender requests to confirm compliance by the Borrower 
and its subsidiaries with any Anti-Terrorism Law).  “Anti-Terrorism Law” means any Law 
relating to terrorism or money laundering, including Executive Order No. 13224, the USA 
Patriot Act, the Laws comprising or implementing the Bank Secrecy Act, and the Laws 
administered by the United States Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Asset Control, as 
any of the foregoing Laws may from time to time be amended, renewed, extended, or 
replaced. 


SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
18 


 


SIGNATURE PAGE TO CREDIT AGREEMENT 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized officers, have executed 
this Agreement. 


SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT 
 
By:  
 
Name:  
 
Title:  


 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Guerneville, California 
Agreement No. 00113226SLA 
 


 
19 


 


SIGNATURE PAGE TO CREDIT AGREEMENT 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized officers, have executed 
this Agreement. 


COBANK, ACB 
 
By:  
 
Name:  
 
Title:  


 


 
 
 





		Item V-D - Approval of Resos 18-07 CoBank Interim Financing

		Meeting Date : April 5, 2018 



		Item V-D.1 - Resolution 18-07 Funding Agmt with Cobank

		Item V-D.2 - Credit Agmt with Cobank

		(A) The Facilities.

		5. Broken Funding Surcharge.  Notwithstanding the terms of any Promissory Note giving the Borrower the right to repay any loan prior to the date it would otherwise be due and payable, the Borrower agrees to provide three Business Days’ prior written notice for any prepayment of a fixed rate balance and to pay to Lender a broken funding surcharge in the amount set forth below in the event the Borrower:  (a) repays any fixed rate balance prior to the last day of its fixed rate period (whether such payment is made voluntarily, as a result of an acceleration, or otherwise); (b) converts any fixed rate balance to another fixed rate or to a variable rate prior to the last day of the fixed rate period applicable to such balance; or (c) fails to borrow any fixed rate balance on the date scheduled therefor.  The surcharge will be in an amount equal to the greater of (1) the sum of: (i) the present value of any funding losses imputed by Lender to have been incurred as a result of such payment, conversion or failure; plus (ii) a per annum yield of 0.50% of the amount repaid, converted or not borrowed for the period such amount was scheduled to have been outstanding at such fixed rate, or (2) $300.00.  Any surcharge will be determined and calculated in accordance with methodology established by Lender, a copy of which will be made available upon request.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a conflict between the provisions of this section and of the broken funding charge section of a forward fix agreement between Lender and the Borrower, the provisions of the forward fix agreement will control.

		6. Taxes; Change in Law.  Any payment by the Borrower to Lender will be made net of any taxes (other than income and similar taxes imposed on or measured by Lender’s overall net income).  If any change in any law, rule, regulation, code, ordinance, order or the like to which the Borrower is subject, including, without limitation, all laws relating to environmental protection, and taxes (collectively, “Laws”), increases the cost of making or maintaining any loan (or any associated commitment to lend), or reduces the amount received or receivable by Lender hereunder then, upon request, the Borrower will pay to Lender such additional amount as will compensate Lender for such additional costs incurred or reduction suffered.



		(B) Conditions Precedent.

		7. Conditions to Initial Promissory Note.  Lender’s obligation to extend credit under the initial Promissory Note hereunder is subject to the condition precedent that Lender receive, in form and substance satisfactory to Lender, each of the following, except as otherwise provided in the Promissory Note or in an Instruction Letter:

		1. This Agreement.  A duly executed copy of this Agreement, the other Loan Documents (as defined below), the Instruction Letter accompanying this Agreement, and all instruments and documents contemplated hereby and thereby.

		2. Banking Service Agreements.  A duly completed and executed copy of any banking service agreement, including any agreement relating to the provision by Lender of cash management services, required by Lender from time to time.  Lender will be entitled to rely on (and will incur no liability to the Borrower in acting on) any request or direction furnished in accordance with the terms thereof.



		8. Conditions to Each Promissory Note.  Lender’s obligations to extend credit under each Promissory Note hereunder, including the initial Promissory Note, is subject to the condition precedent that Lender receive, in form and substance satisfactory to Lender, each of the following, except as otherwise provided in the Promissory Note or in an Instruction Letter:

		1. Promissory Note.  A duly executed copy of the Promissory Note and all instruments and documents contemplated by the Promissory Note.

		2. Instruction Letter.  Any and all items or requirements detailed in an Instruction Letter.

		3. Evidence of Perfection.  Such evidence as Lender may require that it has duly perfected liens as required under this Agreement.

		4. Evidence of Authority.  Such certified board resolutions, certificates of incumbency, and other evidence that Lender may require that the Promissory Note, all instruments and documents executed in connection therewith, and, in the case of the initial Promissory Note hereto, this Agreement, the other Loan Documents (as defined below) and all instruments and documents executed in connection herewith and therewith, including any security documents, have been duly authorized and executed.

		5. Fees and Other Charges.  Any fees or other charges provided for herein, in the Promissory Note or in any invoice provided by Lender.

		6. Insurance.  Such evidence as Lender may require that the Borrower is in compliance with Section 5.4 below.

		7. Consents and Approvals.  Evidence as Lender may require that all regulatory and other consents and approvals referred to in Section 4.6 below have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

		8. Opinion of Counsel.  An opinion of counsel to the Borrower (which counsel must be acceptable to Lender).

		9. Conditions to Each Loan.  Lender’s obligation under each Promissory Note to make any loan to the Borrower thereunder is subject to the condition that no “Event of Default” (as defined in Section 8.1 below) or event that, with the giving of notice and/or the passage of time and/or the occurrence of any other condition, would ripen into an Event of Default (a “Potential Default”) will have occurred and be continuing or would be caused by the making of such loan.





		(C) Representations and Warranties.  

		10. Instruction Letter; Loan Documents.  Each representation and warranty and all information set forth in any Instruction Letter and/or any of the Loan Documents (as defined below) and/or any other document submitted in connection with, or to induce Lender to enter into, such Promissory Note is correct in all material respects as of the date of such Promissory Note.

		11. Compliance; Legal Proceedings.  The Borrower and its subsidiaries and all property owned or leased or proposed to be acquired with the proceeds of any Promissory Note hereunder by the Borrower and/or its subsidiaries and all of its/their operations are in compliance with all applicable Laws and the terms of the Loan Documents and no Event of Default or Potential Default exists or is continuing.  In addition, there are no pending legal, arbitration, or governmental actions or proceedings to which the Borrower or any subsidiary is a party or to which any of its or any subsidiaries’ property is subject which, if adversely determined, might have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, operations, properties, profits, or business of the Borrower or any subsidiary, and to the best of the Borrower’s knowledge, no such actions or proceedings are threatened or contemplated.

		12. Organization; Good Standing.  The Borrower (a) is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of its jurisdiction of organization, (b) has the lawful power to own or lease its properties and to engage in the business it conducts or proposes to conduct, and (c) is duly qualified and in good standing in each jurisdiction where the property owned or leased by it or the nature of the business transacted by it makes such qualification necessary.

		13. Binding Agreement.  The Loan Documents constitute legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Borrower that are enforceable in accordance with their terms.

		14. Conflicting Agreements.  Neither this Agreement nor any Promissory Note, or other instrument or document securing or otherwise relating hereto or to any Promissory Note (each a “Loan Document” and collectively, at any time, the “Loan Documents”) conflicts with, or constitutes (with or without the giving of notice and/or the passage of time and/or the occurrence of any other condition) a default under, any other agreement to which the Borrower is a party or by which it or any of its property may be bound or affected, and does not conflict with any provision of its bylaws, articles of incorporation or other organizational documents.

		15. Consents and Approvals.  No consent, permission, authorization, order or license of any governmental authority or of any party to any agreement to which the Borrower is a party or by which it or any of its property may be bound or affected, is necessary in connection with the project, acquisition or other activity being financed by such Promissory Note, or the execution, delivery, performance or enforcement of any Loan Document, except as have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

		16. Budgets; Full Disclosure.  All budgets, projections, feasibility studies, and other documentation submitted by the Borrower to Lender in connection with, or to induce Lender to enter into, such Promissory Note are based upon assumptions that are reasonable and realistic, and as of the date of such Promissory Note, no fact has come to light, and no event has occurred, that would cause any assumption made therein to not be reasonable or realistic.  No Loan Document or other certificate, statement, agreement, or document furnished to Lender in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document (a) contains any untrue statement of a material fact, or (b) fails to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained herein or therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.  The Borrower is not aware of any Material Adverse Change that has not been disclosed in writing to Lender.  A “Material Adverse Change” means any material adverse change, as reasonably determined by Lender, in the condition, financial or otherwise, operations, business, liabilities (actual or contingent) or properties of the Borrower or in its ability to perform its obligations hereunder, under any security instrument or document, or under any other Loan Document.

		18. ERISA.  The Borrower and its subsidiaries are in compliance in all material respects with the applicable provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, and the regulations and published interpretations thereunder from time to time (“ERISA”).

		20. Water Rights and System Condition.  The Borrower has water rights with such amounts, priorities and qualities as are necessary to service adequately the Borrower’s customers and members.  The Borrower controls, owns, or has access to all such water rights free and clear of the interest of any third party and has not suffered or permitted any transfer or encumbrance of such water rights, has not abandoned such water rights, or any of them, and has not done any act or thing which would impair or cause the loss of any such water rights.  The Borrower’s utility facilities reasonably meet present demand in all material respects, are constructed in a good and professional manner, are in good working order and condition, and comply in all material respects with all applicable law.

		21. Rate Matters.  The Borrower’s rates for the provision of water have been approved, if applicable, by any and all necessary governmental regulatory authorities, including, without limitation, each public service commission or public utilities commission that may have jurisdiction over the operations and rates of the Borrower.  Further, there is no pending, and to the Borrower’s knowledge, no threatened proceeding before any governmental authority, the objective or result of which is or could be to materially reduce or otherwise materially adversely change any of the Borrower’s rates for the provision of water and/or waste water services, or otherwise have a material adverse effect on the condition, financial or otherwise, operations, properties, or business of the Borrower.



		(D) Affirmative Covenants.  

		22. Reports and Notices.  Furnish to Lender:

		1. Annual Financial Statements.  As soon as available, but in no event more than 180 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Borrower occurring during the term hereof, annual financial statements of the Borrower, prepared in a manner acceptable to Lender.  Such financial statements will be prepared in reasonable detail acceptable to Lender.

		2. Interim Financial Statements.  Such interim financial statements as Lender may request from time to time prepared in reasonable detail acceptable to Lender.

		3. Notice of Default.  Promptly after becoming aware thereof, notice of the occurrence of an Event of Default or a Potential Default, including, without limitation, any error in the Borrower’s financial information previously provided to Lender and the occurrence of any breach, default, event of default or event that, with the giving of notice and/or the passage of time and/or the occurrence of any other condition, would become a breach, default or event of default under any loan agreement, indenture, mortgage, or other credit or security agreement or instrument to which the Borrower is a party or by which it or any of its property may be bound or affected.

		4. Notice of Litigation, Environmental Matters, Etc.  Promptly after becoming aware thereof, notice of:  (1) the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding before any court, arbitrator or governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency, or instrumentality having jurisdiction over the Borrower, that, if adversely decided, could result in a Material Adverse Change; (2) the receipt of any notice, indictment, pleading or other communication alleging a condition that may require the Borrower to undertake or to contribute to a clean-up or other response under any environmental Law, or that seeks penalties, damages, injunctive relief, criminal sanctions or other relief as a result of an alleged violation of any such Law, or that claims personal injury or property damage as a result of environmental factors or conditions; and (3) any matter that could have a material adverse effect on the Borrower, including any decision of any regulatory authority or commission.

		5. Notice of Certain Events.  (1) Notice at least 30 days prior thereto, of any change in the Borrower’s name or corporate structure; (2) notice at least 30 days prior thereto, of any change in the Borrower’s organizational documents which changes must be approved in writing by Lender in its reasonable discretion; (3) notice at least 30 days prior thereto, of any change in the principal place of business of the Borrower or the office where its records concerning its accounts are kept; and (4) as soon as available after any changes thereto, copies of the Borrower’s organizational documents certified by the Borrower’s Secretary or equivalent officer acceptable to Lender.



		23. Instruction Letter.  Comply with any and all requirements detailed in an Instruction Letter.

		24. Corporate Existence, Etc.  Preserve and keep in full force and effect its existence and good standing in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or formation, qualify and remain qualified to transact business in all jurisdictions where such qualification is required, and obtain and maintain all licenses, certificates, permits, authorizations, approvals, and the like that are material to the conduct of its business or required by any Law.

		25. Insurance.  

		26. Maintain insurance with reputable and financially sound insurance companies or associations, including self-insurance to the extent customary, acceptable to Lender in such amounts and covering such risks as are usually carried by companies engaged in the same or similar business and similarly situated, and make such increases in the type or amount of coverage as Lender may reasonably request.  All such policies insuring any collateral for the Borrower’s obligations to Lender will have additional insured, mortgagee and lender’s loss payee clauses or endorsements, as applicable, in form and substance satisfactory to Lender.  At Lender’s request, the Borrower agrees to deliver to Lender such proof of compliance with this section as Lender may require.

		1. Property Maintenance.  Maintain in good repair, working order and condition (ordinary wear and tear excepted) in accordance with the general practice of other businesses of similar character and size, all of those properties useful or necessary to its business, and make all alterations, replacements, and improvements thereto as may from time to time be necessary in order to ensure that its properties remain in good working order and condition.  The Borrower agrees that at Lender’s request, which request may not be made more than once a year, the Borrower will furnish to Lender a report on the condition of the Borrower’s property prepared by a professional engineer satisfactory to Lender.

		27. Inspection.  Permit Lender or its agents, upon reasonable notice and during normal business hours or at such other times as the parties may agree, to inspect and visit any of its properties, examine and make excerpts from its books and records, and to discuss its business affairs, finances and accounts with its officers, directors, employees, and independent certified public accountants and to conduct reviews of any collateral.  

		28. Books and Records.  Maintain and keep proper books and records of account in which full, true and correct entries of all its dealings, business and financial affairs will be made in accordance with the Accounting Standards.

		29. Compliance With Laws.  Comply in all material respects with all Laws and any patron or member investment program applicable to the Borrower.  In addition, the Borrower agrees to cause all persons occupying or present on any of its properties to comply in all material respects with all Laws relating to such properties.

		30. Further Assurances and Other Information.  From time to time and at its expense, execute and deliver such documents and do such other acts and things as Lender in its sole discretion may deem necessary or advisable from time to time in order to more fully carry out the provisions and purpose of the Loan Documents, including delivery of such other information regarding the condition or operations, financial or otherwise, of the Borrower as Lender may from time to time reasonably request, including, but not limited to, copies of all pleadings, notices and communications referred to in Section 5.1(d) above.

		31. Capital.  INTENTIONALLY OMITTED

		32. Delivery of Original Loan Documents.  If copies of any executed Loan Documents are delivered to Lender as provided in Article 3 above, immediately deliver to Lender the original executed versions of such Loan Documents.

		34. ERISA.  The Borrower and its subsidiaries, for so long as this Agreement remains outstanding, will remain in compliance in all material respects with the applicable provisions of ERISA, the failure to comply with which has or may have a material adverse effect on the Borrower.

		35. Water Rights and/or Supplies.  Maintain or procure water rights and/or supplies with such amounts, priorities and qualities as are necessary to service adequately the Borrower’s customers and members.  The Borrower will continue to control, own or have access to all such water rights and/or supplies free and clear of the interest of any third party, will not suffer or permit any transfer or encumbrance of such water rights and/or supplies, will not abandon such water rights and/or supplies, or any of them, and will not do any act or thing that would impair or cause the loss of any such water rights and/or supplies.



		(E) Negative Covenants. 

		36. Other Indebtedness.  Create, incur, assume or allow to exist, directly or indirectly, any indebtedness or liability for borrowed money (including trade or bankers’ acceptances), letters of credit, or for the deferred purchase price of property or services (including leases that should be capitalized on the books of the lessee in accordance with the Accounting Standards), except for:

		1. debt to Lender.

		2. accounts payable to trade creditors incurred in the ordinary course of business.

		3. current operating liabilities (other than for borrowed money) incurred in the ordinary course of business.

		4. debt of the Borrower to the State Revolving Fund ("SRF").

		5. debt of the Borrower to RD/RUS.

		6. purchase money security indebtedness, provided that such indebtedness does not exceed the purchase price of the asset(s) being acquired.

		7. debt of the Borrower in existence on the date hereof to Citizens National Bank, on terms and conditions satisfactory to Lender.

		37. Contingent Liabilities.  Assume, guarantee, become liable as a surety, endorse, contingently agree to purchase, or otherwise be or become liable, directly or indirectly (including, but not limited to, by means of a maintenance agreement, an asset or stock purchase agreement, or any other agreement designed to ensure any creditor against loss), for or on account of the obligation of any person or entity, except by the endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or similar transactions in the ordinary course of the Borrower’s business.

		38. Liens.  Create, incur, assume, or allow to exist any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, lien (including the lien of an attachment, judgment, or execution), security interest, or other encumbrance of any kind upon any of its property, real or personal (collectively, “Liens”).  The foregoing restrictions will not apply to:

		1. Liens in favor of Lender .

		2. Liens for taxes, assessments, or governmental charges that are not past due.

		3. pledges and deposits under workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, and social security Laws.

		4. pledges and deposits to secure the performance of bids, tenders, contracts (other than contracts for payment of money), and like obligations arising in the ordinary course of business as conducted on the date hereof.

		5. Liens imposed by Law in favor of mechanics, material suppliers, warehouses, and like persons that secure obligations that are not past due.

		6. easements, rights-of-way, restrictions, and other similar encumbrances that, in the aggregate, do not materially interfere with the occupation, use, and enjoyment of the property or assets encumbered thereby in the normal course of business or materially impair the value of the property subject thereto.

		7. purchase money Liens to secure indebtedness permitted hereunder.

		39. Transactions with Affiliates.  Enter into any transaction with any affiliate except in the ordinary course of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of its business and upon fair and reasonable terms no less favorable to it than it would obtain in a comparable arm’s-length transaction with a person or entity that was not an affiliate.

		40. Loans and Investments.  Make any loan or advance to, or make any investment in, or make any capital contribution to, or purchase or make any commitment to purchase any stock, bonds, notes or other securities of any person or entity, except for:

		1. securities or deposits issued, guaranteed or fully insured as to payment by the United States of America or any agency thereof.

		2. obligation of, Lender.

		41. Dividends and Distributions.  Declare or pay any dividends or make any other distribution of assets to shareholders of the Borrower, or retire, redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire for value any capital stock of the Borrower.

		42. Mergers, Acquisitions, Etc.  Merge or consolidate with any other entity or acquire all or a material part of the assets of any other person or entity, or form or create any new subsidiary, or commence operations under any other name, organization, or entity, including any joint venture.

		43. Transfer of Assets.  Sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise dispose of any of its assets, except:  (a) in the ordinary course of business; and (b) the sale, transfer or disposal of any obsolete or worn-out assets that are no longer necessary or required in the conduct of the Borrower’s business.

		44. Change in Business.  Engage in any business activities or operations substantially different from or unrelated to the Borrower’s present business activities or operations.

		45. Use of Proceeds.  Use the proceeds of any loan made by Lender to the Borrower, whether directly or indirectly, and whether immediately, incidentally or ultimately, to purchase or carry margin stock (within the meaning of Regulation U of the Board) or to extend credit to others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying margin stock or to refund indebtedness originally incurred for such purpose.



		(F) Financial Covenants.

		(G) Default.

		1. Payment Default.  The Borrower should fail to make any payment to Lender when due.

		2. Representations and Warranties.  Any representation, warranty, certification or statement of fact made at any time by the Borrower, herein or in any other Loan Document, or in any certificate, other instrument or statement furnished to Lender by or on behalf of the Borrower, will have been false or misleading in any material respect as of the time it was made or furnished.

		3. Covenants.  The Borrower will default in the observance or performance of any covenant set forth in Article 5 (other than Sections 5.1(c), 5.1(d), 5.1(e)(1), and 5.1(e)(2) above), and such default continues for 30 days after written notice thereof will have been delivered to the Borrower by Lender.

		4. Other Covenants and Agreements.  The Borrower will default in the observance or performance of Sections 5.1(c), 5.1(d), 5.1(e)(1), and 5.1(e)(2) or any other covenant or agreement contained herein or in any other Loan Document or if Borrower uses the proceeds of any loan for any unauthorized purpose.

		5. Cross Default.  The Borrower should, after any applicable grace period, breach or be in default under the terms of any other Loan Document (including, without limitation, any security instrument or document) or any other agreement between the Borrower and Lender, or between the Borrower and any affiliate of Lender, including without limitation Farm Credit Leasing Services Corporation.

		6. Other Indebtedness.  The Borrower should fail to pay when due any indebtedness to any other person or entity for borrowed money or any long-term obligation for the deferred purchase price of property (including any capitalized lease), or any other event occurs that, under any agreement or instrument relating to such indebtedness or obligation, has the effect of accelerating or permitting the acceleration of such indebtedness or obligation, whether or not such indebtedness or obligation is actually accelerated or the right to accelerate is conditioned on the giving of notice, the passage of time, or otherwise.

		7. Judgments.  A judgment, decree, or order for the payment of money will have been rendered against the Borrower and either:  (1) enforcement proceedings will have been commenced; (2) a Lien prohibited by this Agreement, any security instrument, or any other Loan Document, will have been obtained; or (3) such judgment, decree, or order will continue unsatisfied and in effect for a period of 30 consecutive days without being vacated, discharged, satisfied, bonded, or stayed pending appeal.

		8. Loan Document Unenforceable.  Any of the Loan Documents ceases to be a legal, valid, and binding agreement enforceable against the Borrower or any Guarantor, if any or is in any way terminated (except in accordance with its terms) or becomes or is declared ineffective or inoperative.

		9. Revocation of Guaranty.  Any guaranty, suretyship, subordination agreement, maintenance agreement, or other agreement furnished in connection with the Borrower’s obligations hereunder and under any Promissory Note will, at any time, cease to be in full force and effect, or will be revoked or declared null and void, or the validity thereof will be contested by the Guarantor, surety or other maker thereof, or the Guarantor will deny any further liability or obligations thereunder, or will fail to perform its obligations thereunder, or any representation or warranty set forth therein will be breached, or the Guarantor will breach or be in default under the terms of any other agreement with Lender (including any loan agreement or security agreement), or a default set forth in sections (f) through (h) will occur with respect to the Guarantor.

		10. Insolvency, Etc.  The Borrower will:  (1) become insolvent or will generally not, or will be unable to, or will admit in writing its inability to, pay its debts as they become due; or (2) suspend its business operations or a material part thereof or make an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or (3) apply for, consent to, or acquiesce in the appointment of a trustee, receiver, or other custodian for it or any of its property; or (4) have commenced against it any action or proceeding for the appointment of a trustee, receiver, or other custodian and such action or proceeding is not dismissed within 30 days of the date thereof, or a trustee, receiver, or other custodian is appointed for all or any part of its property; or (5) receive notice from any regulatory or governmental authority to the effect that such authority intends to replace the management of the Borrower or assume control over the Borrower; or (6) commence or have commenced against it any proceeding under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, or liquidation law of any jurisdiction.

		11. Material Adverse Change.  Any Material Adverse Change occurs, as reasonably determined by Lender.

		47. Remedies. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default or Potential Default, Lender will have no obligation to extend or continue to extend credit to the Borrower and may discontinue doing so at any time without prior notice or other limitation.  In addition, upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default, Lender may, upon notice to the Borrower:

		1. Termination and Acceleration.  Terminate any commitment and declare the unpaid principal balance of the loans, all accrued interest thereon, and all other amounts payable under this Agreement, each Promissory Note, and all other Loan Documents to be immediately due and payable.  Upon such a declaration, the unpaid principal balance of the loans and all such other amounts will become immediately due and payable, without protest, presentment, demand, or further notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrower.

		2. Enforcement.  Proceed to protect, exercise, and enforce such rights and remedies as may be provided by this Agreement, any security instrument or document, any other Loan Document, or under Law.  Each and every one of such rights and remedies will be cumulative and may be exercised from time to time, and no failure on the part of Lender to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right or remedy will operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial exercise of any right or remedy will preclude any future or other exercise thereof, or the exercise of any other right.  Without limiting the foregoing, Lender may hold and/or set off and apply against the Borrower’s obligations to Lender the proceeds of any equity in Lender, any cash collateral held by Lender, or any balances held by Lender for the Borrower’s account (whether or not such balances are then due).

		3. Application of Funds.  Lender may apply all payments received by it to the Borrower’s obligations to Lender in such order and manner as Lender may elect in its sole discretion.

		 (d) CONSENT TO SUIT.  THE BORROWER CONSENTS TO THE REMEDIES PROVIDED HEREIN, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, SUIT FOR ENFORCEMENT OF THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, EACH PROMISSORY NOTE, AND ALL OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS, AND ALL APPROPRIATE REMEDIES AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, NOTWITHSTANDING PRINCIPLES OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY WHICH OTHERWISE MAY BE APPLICABLE.





		(H) Miscellaneous.

		48. Amendments; Waivers; Etc.  No amendment, modification, or waiver of any provision of this Agreement or the other Loan Documents, and no consent to any departure by the Borrower herefrom or therefrom, will be effective unless approved by Lender and contained in a writing signed by or on behalf of Lender, and then such waiver or consent will be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given.  In the event this Agreement is amended or restated, each such amendment or restatement will be applicable to all Promissory Notes hereto.



		(I) Expenses; Indemnification; Damage Waiver.

		49. Costs and Expenses.  To the extent allowed by Law, the Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses (including the fees and expenses of counsel retained or employed by Lender) incurred by Lender and any participants of Lender in connection with the origination, administration, collection and enforcement of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses incurred in obtaining, perfecting, maintaining, determining the priority of, and releasing any security for the Borrower’s obligations to Lender, and any stamp, intangible, transfer or like tax incurred in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or the recording hereof or thereof.

		50. Indemnification.  The Borrower indemnifies Lender, its affiliates and its and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents and advisors (each an “Indemnitee”) against, and holds each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities and related expenses (including fees and expenses of employed or retained counsel) incurred by any Indemnitee or asserted against any Indemnitee by any third party or by the Borrower arising out of or as a result of (a) the execution or delivery of any Loan Document, the performance or nonperformance by the Borrower of its obligations under any Loan Document or the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the use of the proceeds therefrom, (b) breach of representations, warranties or covenants of the Borrower under any Loan Document, or (c) any actual or prospective claim, litigation, investigation or proceeding relating to any of the foregoing, including any such items or losses relating to or arising under environmental Laws or pertaining to environmental matters, regardless whether any Indemnitee is a party thereto; provided that such indemnity will not, as to an Indemnitee, be available to the extent that such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or related expenses are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction by a final and nonappealable judgment to have resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee.

		51. Waiver of Consequential Damages.  To the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, the Borrower will not assert, and hereby waives, any claim against any Indemnitee, on any theory of liability, for special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages arising out of, in connection with, or as a result of, any Loan Document, the transactions contemplated thereby or the use of the proceeds thereof.

		52. Notices.  All notices hereunder will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when addressed to the party intended to receive the same at the address of such party set forth below (or such other address either party may specify by like notice), (a) upon delivery if personally delivered to a party at such address, (b) three days after the same is deposited in the United States mail as first class, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage paid, (c) one business day after the same has been deposited with Federal Express or another nationally recognized overnight courier service if designated for next-day delivery, and (d) upon delivery if sent by facsimile or electronic mail with confirmation of delivery of the same: 

		53. Effectiveness and Severability.  This Agreement will continue in effect until:  (a) all indebtedness and obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents have been paid or satisfied; (b) Lender has no commitment to extend credit to or for the account of the Borrower under any Promissory Note; and (c) either party sends written notice to the other party terminating this Agreement.  Any provision of this Agreement or any other Loan Document that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction will be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceable without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof or thereof.

		54. Successors and Assigns.

		1. Successors and Assigns Generally.  This Agreement and the other Loan Documents will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Borrower and Lender and their respective successors and assigns, except that the Borrower may not assign or transfer its rights or obligations under this Agreement or the other Loan Documents without the prior written consent of Lender.

		2. Participations, Etc.  From time to time, Lender may sell to one or more banks, financial institutions, or other lenders a participation in one or more of the loans or other extensions of credit made pursuant to this Agreement.  However, no such participation will relieve Lender of any commitment made to the Borrower hereunder.  In connection with the foregoing, Lender may disclose information concerning the Borrower and its subsidiaries, if any, to any participant or prospective participant, provided that such participant or prospective participant agrees to keep such information confidential.  Patronage distributions in the event of a sale of a participation interest will be governed by Lender’s Bylaws and Capital Plan (as each may be amended from time to time).  A sale of a participation interest may include certain voting rights of the participants regarding the loans hereunder (including without limitation the administration, servicing, and enforcement thereof).  Lender agrees to give written notification to the Borrower of any sale of a participation interest.

		55. Integration; Other Types of Credit; Counterparts.

		1. Integration.  The Loan Documents are intended by the parties to be a complete and final expression of their agreement.  Each Promissory Note will be deemed to incorporate all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement as if fully set forth therein.  Without limiting the foregoing, any capitalized term utilized in any Promissory Note (or in any amendment to this Agreement or Promissory Note) and not otherwise defined in the Promissory Note (or amendment) will have the meaning set forth herein or, if applicable, in the Accounting Standards.  In the event the Accounting Standards are changed after the date hereof, then all such changes will be applicable hereto, unless Lender otherwise specifies in writing.

		2. Other Types of Credit.  From time to time, Lender may issue letters of credit or extend other types of credit to or for the account of the Borrower.  In the event the parties desire to do so under the terms of this Agreement, then the agreement of the parties with respect thereto may be set forth in a Promissory Note and this Agreement will be applicable thereto.

		3. Counterparts.  This Agreement, each Promissory Note and any other Loan Document may be executed in counterparts, each of which will constitute an original, but all of which when taken together will constitute a single contract.  Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this Agreement, each Promissory Note and any other Loan Document by facsimile or other electronic means will be as effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of each such agreement.

		56. Applicable Law; Submission to Jurisdiction; Service of Process; Waiver of Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial.

		1. Applicable Law.  Without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws and except to the extent governed by federal law, the Laws of the State of Colorado, without reference to choice of law doctrine, will govern this Agreement, each Promissory Note and any other Loan Document for which Colorado is specified as the applicable law, and all disputes and matters between the parties to this Agreement, including all disputes and matters whatsoever arising under, in connection with or incident to the lending and/or leasing or other business relationship between the parties, and the rights and obligations of the parties to this Agreement or any other Loan Document by and between the parties for which Colorado is specified as the applicable law.

		2. Submission to Jurisdiction; Service of Process.  The Borrower hereby irrevocably consents to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal court in Denver, Colorado, and consents that Lender may effect any service of process in the manner and at the Borrower’s address set forth herein for providing notice or demand; provided that nothing contained in this Agreement will prevent Lender from bringing any action, enforcing any award or judgment or exercising any rights against the Borrower individually, against any collateral or against any property of the Borrower within any other county, state or other foreign or domestic jurisdiction.

		3. Waiver of Venue.  The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the venue provided above is the most convenient forum for the Borrower and Lender.  The Borrower waives any objection to venue and any objection based on a more convenient forum in any action instituted under this Agreement.

		4. Waiver of Jury Trial.  The Borrower and Lender each hereby irrevocably waives any right it may have to a trial by jury in connection with any action directly or indirectly arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any other Loan Document.  Each party hereto (1) certifies that no representative, administrative agent or attorney of any other person has represented, expressly or otherwise, that such other person would not, in the event of litigation, seek to enforce the foregoing waiver and (2) acknowledges that it and the other parties hereto have been induced to enter into this Agreement and other Loan Documents by, among other things, the mutual waivers and certifications in this section.

		57. USA Patriot Act Notice.  Lender hereby notifies the Borrower that pursuant to the requirements of the USA Patriot Act, it is required to obtain, verify, and record information that identifies the Borrower in accordance with the USA Patriot Act.  The Borrower covenants and agrees it will not, and agrees to cause each of its subsidiaries not to, at any time, directly or indirectly be (a) a person with whom Lender is restricted from doing business under any Anti-Terrorism Law, (b) engaged in any business involved in making or receiving any contribution of funds, goods or services to or for the benefit of such a person or in any transaction that evades or avoids, or has the purpose of evading or avoiding, the prohibitions set forth in any Anti-Terrorism Law, or (c) otherwise in violation of any Anti-Terrorism Law (the Borrower will and will cause each of its subsidiaries to provide to Lender any certifications or information that Lender requests to confirm compliance by the Borrower and its subsidiaries with any Anti-Terrorism Law).  “Anti-Terrorism Law” means any Law relating to terrorism or money laundering, including Executive Order No. 13224, the USA Patriot Act, the Laws comprising or implementing the Bank Secrecy Act, and the Laws administered by the United States Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Asset Control, as any of the foregoing Laws may from time to time be amended, renewed, extended, or replaced.










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: April 5, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: REVIEW OF DISTRICT SURPLUS LANDS STRATEGY  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding review of the District Surplus Lands Strategy, including recent activities and 
interest, and provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the February meeting, the Board received a report from the General Manager on his 
investigations on fire management strategies and discussed whether the District 
can/should do anything to address fire danger on our properties.  Since that meeting 
there have been some news articles on Statewide and regionwide efforts to manage 
lands to minimize fire hazards.  These efforts may require the District to take certain 
actions and may provide funding to assist these efforts.  It's too early to determine 
exactly what, if anything, is going to come from these Statewide and regional efforts.      
 


 
 
 
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: April 5, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: GUERNEWOOD PARK RESORT WATER SERVICE REQUEST TO 
THE DISTRICT  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the Guernewood Park Resort request for water service from the District and 
provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Guernewood Park Resort is a proposed hotel/motel with a reported 120 rooms and 
a restaurant which is located next to the Dubrava Condominiums and Hulburt Creek in 
Guernewood Park.   
 
Over the past several months I have been reporting on the progress on an agreement 
with the Resort developer to fund analysis to determine the water supply needs of the 
project.  We have received payment for the modeling analysis and that work is 
underway.   We had a progress report meeting with GPR representatives on February 
27.   
 
On March 27 District staff and Coastland staff had a progress meeting to discuss data 
needs for the model.  A working version of the model has been completed.  Coastland 
staff met with District staff to identify the data gaps - the modelers need better 
information on pipe material, tank elevations and pressure zones.  We also need to 
'truth' the model for pipe sizes.  District staff are working on updating this information.  
Once this information has been satisfactorily put into the model, next steps will be 
checking model results with hydrant flow tests.     
  
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 5, 2018   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in February  were 11,667 units (26.8 AF, 
(Monte Rio cycle) and production was 40.4 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production this month were lower (28.3 AF and 55.0 AF, respectively).  The water lost 
percentage has dropped somewhat, but it's higher than we want.     Figure 1 shows sales, 
production and % difference for the two systems.     


 
2. Leaks:  In February we had 8 total leaks and spent 18 man-hours on them.   Those are 


more leaks and fewer man-hours compared to the prior month and compared to February 
one year ago (3 and 27).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total 
leaks line as well.     


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall: March rainfall rebounded a bit toward average.  We are still in a 


fairly dry year - still below 2009 which was the driest year since I have been here, but 
nowhere near the record dry year in 1977.  Apparently, because of the big year last year 
and this recent rain, the reservoirs remain in good shape.   Figure 3 shows monthly rainfall 
compared to prior years, the long-term average and the recent average.          


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  Making some progress: easements are being prepared.  We'll 


get to see them at some point.  It shouldn't be an issue - these easements were our model 
prior to Open Space becoming involved in the funding.  


 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project:  No real new news - we received some questions about the 


parcels and the water facilities (tanks) on the Schoolhouse Gulch parcel. 
  
6. 2018 CIP: Award of contract at this meeting.  Three agenda items related to this project 


this month.   
 
7. In-House Construction Projects: Three in-house construction projects were reported for 


March: replacement of the Rio Nido tank (235.25 hours), a service upgrade on RIver Blvd (3 
hours), and damaged meter stop replacement on Canyon 3 Rd (6 hours).   


 
8.   Gantt Chart:   Nothing on the Gantt Chart for April, but we have award of contract a 


month early (good) and the USDA bonds a month late (not really an issue).         
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
March 1, 2018 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month Moving 
Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16 Sep-16 Mar-17 Sep-17


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
March 1, 2018 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


O
ct
ob


er


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
a
ti


o
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


Dryest (1977)


2016


07-17 Avg


2017


2018


-


 
 







 
Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Phase 2&3 Award of 
Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: April 5, 2018  



